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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director:
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit (Chairman)
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
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Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit
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Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Fai

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)

Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung crA

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN
THE HONG KONG SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE
REGION OF THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
(THE “PRC")("HONG KONG")

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Investors’ enquiries:

17M Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Transfer of shares:

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit D3, 8/F, TML Tower

No. 3 Hoi Shing Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Ming Fai Industrial Estate
Bainikeng, Pinghu, Longgang
Shenzhen, the PRC

WEBSITE

www.mingfaigroup.com

STOCK CODE
03828
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Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Revenue increased 11.8% to approximately HK$2,311.3
million (for the year ended 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$2,067.3 million).

Gross profit increased 15.6% to approximately HK$579.9
million (for the year ended 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$501.7 million).

Gross profit margin increased 0.8 percentage points to 25.1%
(for the year ended 31 December 2023: 24.3%).

Operating profit was approximately HK$173.7 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2023: approximately HK$144.1
million).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$143.2 million (for the year ended 31
December 2023: approximately HK$104.2 million).

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2024 of HK7.0 cents per share of the Company (the
“Share”) was recommended, together with the interim
dividend of HK3.0 cents per Share for the six months ended
30 June 2024 was declared, representing a total dividend of
HK10.0 cents per Share (for the year ended 31 December
2023: HK7.0 cents per Share) and the annual dividend payout
ratio of 50.5% (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
48.6%).

Annual Report 2024
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFPBEHRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Years ended 31 December

BZ+t-A=t+—-HLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-FTF —E-—F —E-—F —E-=F ZEOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FET THT
Revenue A 1,353,099 1,435,826 1,793,025 2,067,273 2,311,250

Profit/(loss) before REFTERLAT

income tax Bl (&) 101,537 (94,405) 89,986 144,074 177,562
Income tax expenses FiefiF> (26,937) (3,520) (20,144) (48,443) (38,449)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREM/(BR) 74,600 (97,925) 69,842 95,631 139,113

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
REEE REzKk&RE

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-%F B —E--fF —E-=F —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT FET FTET THT
ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EREEE 610,755 593,988 545,131 558,312 554,067
Current assets FEEE 1,192,680 1,144,736 1,204,330 1,406,916 1,441,268
Total assets BERE 1,803,435 1,738,724 1,749,461 1,965,228 1,995,335

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERENEE
Total equity Bt 1,192,334 1,094,446 1,131,481 1,193,216 1,263,337
Non-current liabilities ERBER 24,153 22,574 21,609 23,416 17,868
Current liabilities FEAE 586,948 621,704 596,371 748,596 714,130
Total liabilities BEQE 611,101 644,278 617,980 772,012 731,998
Total equity and liabilities BESNEAE 1,803,435 1,738,724 1,749,461 1,965,228 1,995,335

RERRZERARAR | — T _WFEFR 05
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KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES
FTERREERRE

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company

EREEBAEMERR (BB

HK$ million B &7 T
(% Change &) B tt)

Revenue
KA
HK$ million B &7 T
(% Change Z &) H 5 tb)
2020 1,353.1
—B-TF L/ (-33.8%)
2021 1,435.8
- L) (+6.1%)
2022 - 1,793.0
T —F u (+24.9%)
2023 2,067.3
—To=f w4 (+15.3%)
ey QT
—E-E (+11.8%)

2020 790
—momg o (-19.3%)
(93.5) 2021
warm) ==
2022 55
—Eo L4 (/A TRiER)
2023 7
—mo L/ (+38.0%)
2024 e

—z-pr (I ) ;7

Basic earnings/(loss) per Share attributable to
owners of the Company

FAREAANEEERERER(FE)

HK cents /&1L

(% Change &) B 5 th)
2020 10.8
—m—me o (20.0%)
(128) 2021
(NAEA) O —T-—F
2022 10.4
—E——fF L/ (A TRiEA)
2023 14.4
—Eo=% A (+385%)
—E-NE (+37.5%)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024

Dividend per Share
BRRE

HK cents 781l
(% Change BN EHLL)

2020 25
[y b (-44.4%)

2021 -
—E-—F (NATER)

2022 4.0
—EB-—F ) (N/A “NiE )

2023 7.0
B \.) (+75.0%)

2024 10.0
—E-NE (+42.9%)




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

In 2024, the global economy moved forward amidst recovery and
challenges. Intensifying geopolitical tensions, escalating global trade
frictions, and uncertainties in national economic policies continued to
influence the global economic development. Although the
development prospects remain uncertain, the global tourism industry
has gradually recovered. According to the World Tourism Barometer
released by the United Nations World Tourism Organization (“UN
Tourism”) in January 2025, with 1.4 billion international tourist
arrivals recorded globally, 2024 marked the recovery of international
tourism from the worst crisis after the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, driven by strong post-pandemic demand, robust
performance from large source markets, and the ongoing recovery of
destinations in Asia and the Pacific.

With the gradual recovery of the global tourism, the Group has
consistently demonstrated improving overall performance. The Group
recorded an overall revenue of approximately HK$2,311.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024, an increase of 11.8% as
compared with approximately HK$2,067.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2023, in which the hospitality supplies business, the
operating supplies and equipment (“OS&E") business and the health
care and hygienic products business contributed approximately
HK$1,930.1 million, HK$210.4 million and HK$170.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December
2023: approximately HK$1,697.2 million, HK$193.3 million and
HK$176.8 million), respectively.

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$579.9 million (for the year ended 31 December
2023: approximately HK$501.7 million). The gross profit margin of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 was 25.1% (for the
year ended 31 December 2023: 24.3%). Profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$143.2 million (for the year ended 31 December
2023: approximately HK$104.2 million).

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TFEHES (&)

The Group recognises that the current market environment is highly
complex and influenced by a multitude of factors. In order to
effectively address uncertainties and mitigate the challenges posed
by trade tariffs, the Group has actively pursued a supply chain
diversification strategy to enhance overall business resilience.
Through supply chain diversification, the Group operates production
lines of hospitality supplies products in the Kingdom of Cambodia
("Cambodia”), taking advantages of the local labour resources and
strategic geographic location, which not only significantly reduces
production costs but also enhances production efficiency, creating
synergies for potential business expansion. By diversifying its supply
chain, the Group is not only able to navigate the evolving market
dynamics, but also to explore opportunities in other neighbouring
countries within Southeast Asia region to leverage the cost benefits
associated with regional low tariff policies. Moving forward, the
Group will continue to optimise its supply chain structure, flexibly
adjust its capacity expansion plans, and accelerate the development
of its operations and businesses to fully capitalise on the vast
opportunities within the Southeast Asian market.

Despite the global tourism industry is expected to further recovery,
the current global economic environment remains complex and
volatile, with multiple uncertainties potentially posing challenges to
the industry’s development. The Group maintains a cautiously
optimistic outlook on the future of the tourism industry. We will
closely track market dynamics, strengthen our competitive
advantages, and implement adaptable strategies to address potential
risks and seize development opportunities.

To achieve the goal of long-term and stable growth for the Group’s
business, we adhere to the sustainability development and actively
align with the major trends of environmental-friendly production and
circular economy development. The Group will also actively respond
to the risks and opportunities brought by market changes, closely
monitor market trends, and adopt flexible operational strategies to
maintain long-term competitiveness. We will continue to dedicate
ourselves to creating sustainable value for our customers, further
enhancing our understanding of their needs to maintain and grow
enduring and stable partnerships. Meanwhile, the Group will fully
leverage the advantages of its existing production bases, continuously
optimise resource allocation, enhance production and operational
efficiency, and strive to maintain steady development in an uncertain
market environment.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all Shareholders and business partners for their ongoing support
and trust over the years. | also deeply appreciate our management
and employees for their dedication, professionalism, and valuable
contributions, especially in navigating the challenges faced by the
Group.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Financial Highlights

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the
Group:

EEEN®RD N

B %5 [0 R

TEUBRE
UNTEINAEEGEERHHRHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLEE

2024 2023 Change

—R-mE —Fo=F L)

HKS million HK$ million %

BEET BEBT B

Revenue WA 2,311.3 2,067.3 11.8%

Gross Profit EH 579.9 501.7 15.6%

Profit attributable to owners of the Company R X & #E A A B & A 143.2 104.2 37.4%
Basic earnings per Share attributable to KRRIEE AELSR

owners of the Company (HK cents) EARER GEAM) 19.8 14.4 37.5%
Diluted earnings per Share attributable to RAGHEE AEEER

owners of the Company (HK cents) BSERF GEMW) 19.8 14.4 37.5%

Dividend per Share (HK cents) BRRE CEL) 10.0 7.0 42.9%

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total revenue of the
Group recorded an increase of 11.8% to approximately HK$2,311.3
million (for the year ended 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$2,067.3 million). For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
revenues of the hospitality supplies business, OS&E business and
health care and hygienic products business were approximately
HK$1,930.1 million, HK$210.4 million and HK$170.8 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2023: approximately HK$1,697.2 million,
HK$193.3 million and HK$176.8 million) respectively, which
represented 83.5%, 9.1% and 7.4% (for the year ended 31
December 2023: 82.1%, 9.4% and 8.5%) of the Group’s total
revenue respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2024
increased 15.6% to approximately HK$579.9 million, compared with
approximately HK$501.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Gross profit margin increased 0.8 percentage points to 25.1%
from 24.3% as compared with the prior year, as a result of the
increase in revenues of hospitality supplies business and operating
supplies and equipment business, and various measures taken by the
Group including tightening cost control and more effort in sales of
products with high profit margin.

L' ON

BE-_Z-_NE+_-_A=+—HIEEE &
EBEARAZEIEIEIT 8%EL2,311.388
Br(EHE_ZE_=ZF+-_A=+—HI&
B 4206738588 HE_ZT_NF
+T-A=+-—HLFE BEEERES -
EERAMMREESEEREERTERD
¥ ADRI#1,930 1B 8B T~ 210.4
BEATKI7T08EEBTL(HEZZ-_=F
+TZA=1T—HLFE: H1,69728 8%
T 193 3EBETRI768EEET) * »H
Bl A &£ B 2 U8 A E983.5% ~ 9.1% K 7.4%
(BE-—ZE-=F+-HA=+—HIEE:
82.1% ~ 9.4%[8.5%) °

EMRERNER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 was approximately HK$143.2 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2023: approximately HK$104.2 million).

Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per Share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 were HK19.8 cents
and HK19.8 cents (for the year ended 31 December 2023: HK14.4
cents and HK14.4 cents) respectively.

Final dividend

The Board had resolved to propose a final dividend of HK7.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year ended
31 December 2023: HK5.0 cents). A sum of the interim and final
dividends for the year ended 31 December 2024 was expected to be
HK10.0 cents per Share (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
HK7.0 cents). The proposed final dividend is subject to approval at
the annual general meeting to be held on 22 May 2025 (“AGM").

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management
policy and actively manages its liquidity position with standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and potential capital
demands for future development.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$328.6 million (as at 31 December
2023: approximately HK$375.1 million).

Net assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s net assets was approximately
HK$1,263.3 million (as at 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$1,193.2 million).

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBS®mE DM (&)

Borrowings EE
The borrowing structure, maturity profile and currency denomination ZAKEEEZEELAE  SIHHR R G
of the Group's borrowings are as follows: BWT :
Borrowing structure: EEZE -
As at 31 December
R+=A=t—-H
2024 2023
ZECME ZT-=F
Effective interest rate ~ HK$ million Effective interest rate  HK$ million
BERA = BEETR ERAE BEAT
Secured bank borrowings  Floating rate of 1.7% per annum 2.2 Floating rate of 1.7% per annum 3.2
with repayable on over 1-month Hong Kong Inter- over 1-month HIBOR
demand clauses bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
BEREREEGRZ —ERAEBRITEAXKFEER —EAFBRITRAERFEE
BERRITEE ((BEBRTAXKFEER]) MEFNE.T%. 2 FEM X
MEFE1TI%ZZBFE
Floating rate of the higher of 1.8 Floating rate of the higher of 4.1
1.7% per annum over 1-month 1.7% per annum over 1-month
HIBOR or the cost to the bank of HIBOR or the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—BRAEARTEAERFEE —EAEBRITAERFEE
E R E1.7% MEFE1.7%
RETBRIREREIZRSE HRITBNREN BB DE
2R E A= 2R EFE
Floating rates ranging from 20.2 Floating rates ranging from 39.7
1.8%-1.82% per annum over 1.8%-1.82% per annum over
1-month Term Secured Overnight 1-month Term SOFR
Financing Rate (“SOFR")
—EAHRERBRABERE — & A BRERRBEREREF X
(TERBRERMERE]) MAFERNE1.8%FE1.82%
mAFERE1.8%E1.82% ZIFEM =
23 EH=
Secured other borrowings Fixed rates ranging from 1.9 Fixed rates ranging from 2.2
without repayable on 1.26%-1.38% per annum 0.36%-1.38% per annum
demand clauses
W B BRERIFRZ NP ERE1.26%Z1.38% NFERNE0.36%Z1.38%
BFEREMES 2 B E R R 2 [EE 7 &
26.1 49.2
BIEERERERAR | —E_MFFER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBSN®WR DM (E)

Maturity profile:

The repayment terms of the borrowings without taking into
consideration the effect of repayable on demand clauses are as
follows:

BRI -

FE AT Ko iR B SR AE R IR

REFHRINT

TET BE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2024 2023
—E-ME —_ET-=
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEABT
Within 1 year MER 14.6 22.8
Between 1 and 2 years 122F 2 E 9.7 14.7
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 2 A 0.9 10.5
Over 5 years S5F A E 0.9 1.2
26.1 49.2
Currency denomination: E¥itiE -
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-INEF —E-=fF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEABR BEETT
Hong Kong dollars BT 4.0 7.2
United States dollars ET7T 20.2 39.8
Japanese Yen HIEl 1.9 2.2
26.1 49.2
Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated (EEFEBEH NS M EHRERM 21 ©

financial statements.

Charges on Group assets

Except for other borrowings of approximately HK$1.9 million as at 31
December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately HK$2.2
million), which was secured by personal guarantee of a non-controlling
interest of the Group, bank borrowings were secured by certain
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follows:

EEBFN®WRD N (E)

fEEZEENEEZRAENT :

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H

2024 2023
“ENEF —F-=
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBET
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - [§E k& E 14.2 15.6
Right-of-use assets FREEE 25.5 26.7
Bank deposit RITHER 11.6 12.0
51.3 54.3
Gearing ratio BEHEHX

The gearing ratio was calculated as net debt (i.e. borrowings less BEREL XL FES (BEENGRRS
cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio RZRESFEHRB)BABEEFE RN _-F

was not applicable to the Group as at 31 December 2024 and as at
31 December 2023.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Group currently does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related
currency exposure with respect to RMB is managed through
increasing revenue denominated in the same currency.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Details of the capital commitments as at 31 December 2024 and as
at 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group has no material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: same).

THFE+_A=t—BARRIZBZ=F+=
A=1—8 BEABUXITEARAS
-

S EE B 2

AEBEHAARE ((ARE]) AENZRE
SN LB o AN ER B B AT I 4 ) 7 S BE R IR
% o

AEEXTENTERBERME - BEAR
K2EERARTEBENAEREEEZ
WAETER -

BEXRERERIREE

R-B_WNET+_A=+—HER=-F_=%F
T A=+ —BRZERNAEFEEANGEERM
%%#Fi%%l%?% R-B_NE+ A=+
CAEEMEEAIRABE(R_T ==
$+_H_+ B :ER) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy experienced both recovery and challenges in
2024. Despite sustained high levels of geopolitical tensions and
global trade frictions, as well as increased uncertainty in economic
policies, factors such as the gradual rebound of the global economy,
the easing of inflationary pressures, and the progressive loosening of
monetary policies by central banks have contributed to a sustained
recovery in the global tourism industry, demonstrating steady growth
momentum. Meanwhile, against the backdrop of the gradual
recovery in the travel, tourism, and aviation industries, global tourism
revenue showed robust growth, driving the improvement of the
Group's business.

Hospitality Supplies Business

According to the World Tourism Barometer released by the UN
Tourism in January 2025, an estimated 1.4 billion tourists travelled
internationally in 2024, indicating a 99% recovery of pre-pandemic
levels. This represents an increase of 11% over 2023, or 140 million
more international tourist arrivals, with results driven by strong
post-pandemic demand, robust performance from large source
markets and the ongoing recovery of destinations in Asia and the
Pacific. The continuous improvement in the global tourism industry
has steadily driven up the market demand for hospitality supplies.

Revenue from the Group’s hospitality supplies business for the year
ended 31 December 2024 increased by 13.7% to approximately
HK$1,930.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
approximately HK$1,697.2 million), which contributed 83.5% (for
the year ended 31 December 2023: 82.1%) to the Group’s total
revenue. Gross profit from the hospitality supplies business increased
by 16.2% to approximately HK$477.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
approximately HK$410.4 million). The segment’s gross profit margin
increased by 0.5 percentage points to 24.7% for the year ended 31
December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023: 24.2%).

Hospitality supplies business revenues for the year ended 31
December 2024 from the PRC, Hong Kong, the North America,
Europe, other Asia Pacific region and Australia were approximately
HK$528.0 million, HK$294.4 million, HK$323.0 million, HK$315.9
million, HK$375.7 million and HK$90.1 million (for the year ended
31 December 2023: approximately HK$547.8 million, HK$182.6
million, HK$250.9 million, HK$262.1 million, HK$357.0 million and
HK$91.4 million) respectively, accounted for 27.3%, 15.2%, 16.7%,
16.4%, 19.5% and 4.7% (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
32.3%, 10.8%, 14.8%, 15.4%, 21.0% and 5.4%) of the total
hospitality supplies business segment revenue respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Hospitality supplies business segment revenue
by geographical location

16.7%

L‘

16.4%

© The PRC [
Hong Kong #Hi&

© North America 1t3
Europe &M

Operating Supplies and Equipment Business

In the recently released China Construction Pipeline Trend Report
from Lodging Econometrics, analysts reported that there were 871
new hotels accounting for 120,928 rooms opened in China during
2024. As of the end of 2024, the total hotel construction pipeline in
China stood at 3,779 projects/681,915 rooms. Revenue from the
Group's OS&E business was approximately HK$210.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024, representing an increase of 8.8% as
compared with approximately HK$193.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2023, and representing 9.1% (for the year ended 31
December 2023: 9.4%) of the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
from the OS&E business increased by 9.1% to approximately
HK$51.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year
ended 31 December 2023: approximately HK$47.3 million). The
segment’s gross profit margin remains unchanged at 24.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year ended 31 December
2023: 24.5%).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, OS&E business revenues from
the PRC and other markets were approximately HK$155.3 million and
HK$55.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
approximately HK$141.3 million and HK$52.0 million) respectively,
representing 73.8% and 26.2% (for the year ended 31 December
2023: 73.1% and 26.9%) of the total OS&E business segment
revenue respectively.

0.3%

©® Australia B

® Others Hfth
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBSN®mR DM (&)

O
Operating supplies and equipment business
segment revenue by geographical location

® The PRC A

The Group will continue to be guided by market demand, further
optimising the product categories and quality standards in the OS&E
business, and flexibly adjusting supply strategies to enhance our
market competitiveness. We will also actively explore potential
growth opportunities to seek more collaborative prospects, and
proactively seize the development opportunities in the hotel
construction projects in Southeast Asia to further expand market
coverage, in order to stimulate the long-term growth potential of this
business and create sustainable value.

Health Care and Hygienic Products Business

The Group focuses on producing high-quality health care and
hygienic products and disposable infection control products, striving
to meet the diverse needs of the market. As the world continues to
recover from the pandemic, the demand for anti-epidemic products
has steadily diminished, leading to an impact on the revenue of this
business segment. In view of this, the Group will focus on market
demand to reassess and adjust the strategic direction of this business,
and further expand categories and services of existing products.
Meanwhile, we will examine the emerging needs of new customers
to effectively respond to market changes, while creating new growth
opportunities in the post-pandemic era.

Revenue from the Group’s health care and hygienic products business
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately HK$170.8
million (for the year ended 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$176.8 million), which contributed 7.4% (for the year ended 31
December 2023: 8.5%) of the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
from the health care and hygienic products business was
approximately HK$51.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2024 (for the year ended 31 December 2023: approximately HK$44.0
million). The segment’s gross profit margin increased 5.1 percentage
points to 30.0% for the year ended 31 December 2024 (for the year
ended 31 December 2023: 24.9%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenues of health care
and hygienic products business from the North America, Hong Kong
and other markets were approximately HK$162.4 million, HK$1.8
million and HK$6.6 million (for the year ended 31 December 2023:
approximately HK$162.4 million, HK$4.3 million and HK$10.1
million) respectively, representing 95.1%, 1.0% and 3.9% (for the
year ended 31 December 2023: 91.9%, 2.4% and 5.7%) of the total
health care and hygienic products business segment revenue
respectively.

Health care and hygienic products business
segment revenue by geographical location

® North America dt%

Hong Kong &8
N\

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

The Group is aiming to become an excellent international corporate
brand specialising in hospitality supplies and personal care products,
create maximum value for stakeholders, and support ecology for
sustainable development.

Co-existence of prospects and challenges in global
tourism industry

According to the World Tourism Barometer released by UN Tourism
in January 2025, economic and geopolitical headwinds continue to
pose significant risks to the tourism industry, extreme weather events
and staff shortages are also critical challenges for tourism
performance. However, growth in global tourism is expected to
continue throughout 2025, driven by strong demand contributing to
the socio-economic development of both mature and emerging
destinations. Given the volatile situation of global tourism industry,
the Group will adopt a prudent and proactive approach in its
operations, including enhancing internal management, improving
resource allocation, and boosting technological innovation
capabilities, to solidify and enhance our core competitiveness over
the long term. At the same time, we will also seize market
opportunities and flexibly adjust strategic directions to maintain
steady business development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (&)

Leverage the Cambodia plant to address global
economic challenges

Against the backdrop of continuous adjustments in the global
economic landscape and increasingly tense geopolitical situations,
trade barriers and supply chain fluctuations are imposing, and
international enterprises are facing growing cost challenges. To
alleviate the cost pressures and tap into emerging markets such as
Southeast Asia, the Group has proactively deployed in the Southeast
Asian region in past few years with the production plant in
Cambodia. The Group has continuously enhanced its production
capabilities aiming to achieve greater cost efficiency in
manufacturing. Looking ahead, the Group will further expand and
enhance its business layout in Cambodia and surrounding regions,
leveraging favourable local tax policies and the immense market
potential to drive the implementation of the Group’s globalisation
strategy, providing exceptional service value to clients.

Continuously emphasis on sustainability targets
and development

Environmental, social, and governance (“ESG") considerations
progressively becoming a widely acceptable framework for evaluating
the sustainable value of businesses. The Group has been committed
to researching and innovating in environmental-friendly products,
particularly in the fields of hospitality supplies and health care and
hygienic products, and incorporating more eco-friendly materials into
the production. The Group also places significant emphasis on our
sustainability targets and ESG policies, adjusting our strategic
directions and deepening the concept of sustainable development
within our Group, continue to actively fulfill its corporate social
responsibilities by building a green industrial chain and contributing
to the long-term goal of achieving as a green enterprise.

Fostering long-lasting relationships by delivering
exceptional products and services

The sustainable development of the Group is deeply rooted in
long-term mutual trust and collaborative success with business
partners. We consistently prioritise high-quality products and
exceptional services, striving to meet the needs of both existing and
potential clients for hospitality supplies, with the aim of establishing
and strengthening long-term and stable partnerships. Looking
forward, the Group will continue to focus on product innovation and
service upgrades, actively embracing market trends to further
enhance product competitiveness and customer satisfaction.
Meanwhile, the Group will also continue to maintain long-term
cooperative relationships with existing customers and actively explore
emerging potential customer groups to jointly promote business
cooperation and create mutually beneficial outcomes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Practical and adaptable development strategies
preserve brand value

The global economy and business landscape are constantly evolving.
Factors such as significant economic disparities between countries,
the risk of renewed inflationary pressures, and geopolitical tensions
have the potential negatively impact to the business environment. In
response, the Group will diligently monitor global trends and swiftly
adjust our strategies to effectively mitigate market risks. At the same
time, the Group will remain committed to the strategy of cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement, with the goal of steadily
improving profit margins. The Group will also continue to deepen
sustainability development and enhance its core competitiveness by
proactively adjusting market strategies to further capture market
shares and solidify its leading position in the industry. In addition, we
will continue to improve the operational system, optimise liquidity
and enhance resource allocation efficiency to strengthen risk
management and lay a solid foundation for the Group’s long-term
development.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was approximately
7,900 as at 31 December 2024. The employee benefit expenses
including Directors’ emoluments were approximately HK$567.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2024. The remuneration of
employees (including the Directors and senior management) of the
Group are generally structured by reference to market terms and
individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
also provides various other benefits to designated staff, including
discretionary bonus, social insurance or medical insurance, share
award scheme, continuing education and training programmes. The
Group also launched key performance indicators assessment scheme
and commendation annual award scheme to boost individual
performance and operational efficiency.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEABZEREAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 63, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee
of the Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for sales and marketing, production of the products and
the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies of the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai has over 30 years of
experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Keung
is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the
son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 60, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Keung joined the Group with the founders. He has
been responsible for human resources and administrative matters of
the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Keung has over 30 years of experience in
the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. LIU has been responsible for sales and marketing since he joined
the Group in May 1995. He oversees sales in the Greater China
Region. Mr. LIU has over 20 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. He obtained a Master degree of Business
Administration in Centenary College of New Jersey, USA in 2011.
Mr. LIU also holds a diploma from Shenzhen University, the PRC and
completed a course on International Business Management of
Tsinghua University organised by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of
Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 43, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company, a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
the business development director of the Group. He joined the Group
since 2006 to assist in production and has been actively involved in
both the business and product development of the Group. Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah has extensive experience in the hospitality supplies
industry. He oversees sales in Southeast Asia and overseas markets.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah obtained the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2020. He
graduated in Seneca College Toronto of Canada in marketing
administration in 2003. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is the son of
Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 52, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is the Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary, a member of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. KEUNG joined the Group in July 2010 and he is
responsible for finance and accounting matters. He has over 30 years
of experience in accounting and financial management. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 57, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since 2015. She is a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 1995 and was responsible
for sales and marketing and oversaw export sales to overseas
markets. She was an Executive Director of the Company from 2007
to 2015. Ms. CHAN has over 30 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in several
companies engaged in hospitality supplies business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 70, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. HUNG has over 30 years of
senior management experience in managing hotel operations and
hotel investments. He was a deputy managing director in 1992 and
an executive director from July 1997 to January 2001 of Top Glory
International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory”), a former Hong Kong
listed company which was privatised in August 2003. During the
period with Top Glory, Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to develop and
manage hotels/resorts. In 2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel
development consultancy service to work with various hotel
developers and prestigious hotel chains on design and project
management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESNRGREBAECEBEST (A)

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson, aged 48, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2016. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He graduated with Bachelor degree of
Commerce in the University of New South Wales, Australia in July
2000. Mr. SUN has been the managing director of Kin Hip Metal &
Plastic Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006. He
has been dedicated to explore and position the products of KINOX,
an international quality manufacturer of fashionable cookware,
houseware and electrical appliances in household and catering
industries, in emerging and global markets. Mr. SUN is also the
founding chairman and honorary president of Young Executive
Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries (“FHKI"), the
president of The Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association
Limited, the founding vice chairman and secretary general of Hong
Kong 020 E-Commerce Federation, the vice chairman of Hong Kong
Q-Mark Council, the chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’
Association and a committee member of FHKI Pearl River Delta
Council. Mr. SUN dedicates his effort on social responsibilities and
practices active roles in different public services in both Hong Kong
and China.

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit, aged 47, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2021. He is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee of the Company. Mr. KWONG obtained a Master degree
of Business Administration in Anglia Ruskin University, United
Kingdom and a Bachelor degree of Business Administration in
Accountancy in the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. KWONG has
over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial management.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. KWONG is currently the Chief Financial Officer of Top Form
International Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was the
Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Operating Officer of a veterinary
group, the vice president of finance and management information
system of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, the group financial controller of Defond Holdings
(H.K.) Co. Limited and the group financial controller of Valuetronics
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Singapore Exchange Limited.

The five Executive Directors whose biographical details are included
in the sub-section headed “Executive Directors” above are also
regarded as the senior management of the Company.
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The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased
to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of hospitality
supplies products, trading of operating supplies and equipment and
manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic products.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 148 of this
annual report.

Dividend policy

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to grow the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. The declaration and payment of any dividends by the
Company would be subject to the Board’s decision and any final
dividend for a financial year of the Company would be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval. The decision to declare or to pay any
dividend, and the amount of any dividends, will depend on the
Group’s earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, and any other factors the Board may consider relevant.
These factors and the payment of dividends is at the discretion of the
Board and the Board reserves the right to change its plan on any
future payment of dividends. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2024, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$22,028,000 was paid on 3 October 2024, including dividend paid
to Shares held for the share award scheme of the Company (the
“Share Award Scheme”).

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK7.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2024. Subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be
paid on Friday, 6 June 2025 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 30 May 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ExE8E (&)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND
RECORD DATES

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 19 May 2025 to Thursday, 22 May 2025 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
The record date will be on Thursday, 22 May 2025. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all documents in respect of
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 16 May 2025.

For ascertaining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 28 May 2025 to Friday, 30 May 2025 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
The record date will be on Friday, 30 May 2025. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all documents in respect of transfers
of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 27 May 2025.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 07 to 08 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 09 to 19 of this
annual report.

Analysis of financial key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators and analysis of the Group’s
business are set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 09 to 19 of
this annual report.
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Risks pertaining to the reliance on direct sales customers
and distributors for the sale of products

Our hospitality supplies products, operating supplies and equipment
and health care and hygienic products are sold to our customers by
direct sales, including hotels and airline operators, or to distributors,
or to other end-users. There is no assurance that such customers will
continue to purchase or maintain their purchase volumes of our
products in the future. In addition, there is no assurance that we will
be able to maintain business relationship with our customers. In the
event that any of our customers ceases to purchase from us or
reduces the purchase volume of orders placed with us and we are
unable to obtain replacement orders, our business and profitability
may be adversely affected.

Risks pertaining to price fluctuations of raw materials

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign
exchange rates. There is no guarantee that the costs of raw materials
will be stable in the future. To the extent that we are unable to cover
any increased costs of raw materials by either reduction in other
production costs or increase of our product prices, our profits will be
adversely affected.

Operation risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the respective markets. Default on the part of the
Group's customers, distributors, suppliers and business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and systems or
other external factors may have various levels of negative impact on
the results of operations. Additionally, accidents may happen despite
systems and policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
finance loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Market risks

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency
fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks
in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. Particulars of
financial risk management of the Group are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ExE8E (&)

Risks relating to compliance with laws and requlations

We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the respective jurisdictions.
There is no assurance that the existing laws and regulations will not
be changed or additional or more stringent requirement will not be
imposed, compliance with which may cause us to incur significant
expenditure. Moreover, if we fail to comply with the present or
future laws and regulations, we may be required to pay substantial
fines, suspend production or cease operations. Consequently, our
financial condition, business and reputation may be adversely
affected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and fulfill social
responsibilities in order to achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development
and fulfill corporate social responsibilities (“CSR"”) by applying
“commercial morality, the kindness towards people and protecting
environment”. We comply with the laws and respect commercial
morality. We manage our operation based on the legal, compliant
and reasonable basics. We respect human rights, care for public
welfare. We value integrity and achieve win-win situation by
cooperation. We follow our philosophy of respecting morality and
giving back to society. We value resources and promote
environmental protection. Relying on scientific improvements to
reduce impacts on the environment, while we are seeking for
environmental technologies to maintain sustainable development.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also
a responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a
good platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling
and sustainable. CSR will remain a prominent matter in the Group'’s
agenda, and environmental management is always an integral part of
the Group's business planning and daily operations.
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Details of environmental policies and performance of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2024", which was prepared in
accordance with “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” contained in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and had been published on
the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website.

Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet
our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-communicated
to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels to understand customers’ trends and
needs and regularly analyses on customers’ feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality
products and services are offered to the customers.

THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, equity and liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set
out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05 of this annual
report.

SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Group did not issue any Shares and debentures during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 65 and
Notes 18 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$985.3 million.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE (K)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, in which the
Company incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. NG Bo Kwong (resigned on 28 February 2025)
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

In accordance with article 138 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. CHING Chi Fai, Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, Ms. CHAN
Yim Ching and Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit will retire at the AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Confirmation of independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, none of the Directors has any
interest in any business apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2024.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group’s senior management in full-time employment, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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INFORMATION ON THE STRUCTURED
DOCUMENTS

(1

(2)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

The VIE Structure

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 22
October 2017 and 19 January 2018 (the “Announcements”),
due to applicable laws and regulatory prohibitions on owning
land and real properties in Cambodia by foreign ownership,
the Group has in place a series of contractual arrangements to
establish the VIE Structure that are designed to allow the
Company to exercise control over the operations of the
Landholding Company (i.e. a company incorporated under the
laws of Cambodia and owned as to 49% by Ming Fai Holdings
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and 51%
by the Local Partner (i.e. an assistant solicitor of the Cambodia
legal adviser to the Company, who is a Cambodian citizen and
an independent third party) to hold the Land and the
Properties) and enjoy the economic benefits in the Land and
the Properties. Unless otherwise specified, capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as defined in the
Announcements.

The Change of Local Partner and the 2021 VIE
Structure

On 16 June 2021, the relevant parties entered into the
following documents to change one of the registered
shareholders of the Landholding Company from the Local
Partner to Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, an Executive Director (the
“Change of Local Partner”):

(1) the Termination Agreement, pursuant to which Ming
Fai Holdings Limited and the Local Partner agreed the
termination of the aforesaid contractual arrangements
between the Group and the Local Partner;

(2) the Transfer Documents, pursuant to which the Local
Partner transferred 51% of equity interests of the
Landholding Company to Mr. CHING Tsun Wah; and

(3) the 2021 Structured Documents (collectively, the New
Loan Agreement, the 2021 Power of Attorney, the New
Blank Shareholders’ Resolution, the New Blank Share
Transfer Documents, the New Share Pledge Agreement,
the New Call Option Agreement and the 2021
Shareholders’ Agreement), pursuant to which the
Group established the 2021 VIE Structure, which was
on substantially the same terms as those in place under
the VIE Structure, save as to the identity of the Local
Partner.

Annual Report 2024

BFHEREXHANESR

(1)

(2)

ENEERER
HMMARRBHH BB -F—LF+
A-+-BR= —A¢ A+hnB

MRE((ZEAE]D MHEE  Blst
SNEEAEEERBRELIRTEE

ZHERERIMERRY AREEE
TR RHEARIATENEE

‘%’3%% HEEEAQRAHFHAEL

RA(BNAHEZ LW RZEDME
ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁiﬂii\ﬂﬂ%ﬂ?jZQﬂ
HoRlmAEERAR AR (KR A
ZEEMBRAR) REHAR A (BIX
REARBRZZEROYIERED - B

REEARNMBIFE=7) HHI9%
K51 % a) 2 BEITEESE &

FHERZITWEZEMENLENES -
M= BRIAESIN - AEIPT A MR B
ENEMAEEAEGHEREE -

SEEMEBARS
ARNEERER

ZE-—FXA+B " B@IH
EFTLUNTXH  UEBETHA
AEP—ZAMBRRBEHMERAE
FRATESEEELE([2EEMH
BBAD :

4H

——F

E’i

(1 ?,\%JJ:T%;’:E CBRUHEERER
RAINEHABARBRILER
SERZEMAB AR L it

BT

(2) HEHEXMH BLHEHEEAR
BEELFEERFEIMAA
BI51 %/ 0 &

) —E_—FHEBUEXHGE
%Tﬁ%%%~:§:-¢i‘§%§%%
CHEARRABR W=
Eﬂxfﬁﬁﬂﬁxﬁ A E A

Tﬁl n% %ﬁ i Ex%xﬁiqﬁé J[ZVJ AE —g
**Eﬁﬁﬁ%#z%?ﬁ) TF

mﬂﬁﬁ%%% B?“‘ ﬁl/\%ﬁ

AZBRS - — B —FAR
FAEREBET 220K

AT N s ERBAERBEAT
ZERRBEGRRAREBAER -



(3)

Upon the Change of Local Partner, Ming Fai Holdings Limited
and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah were the shareholders of the
Landholding Company holding its equity interest as to 49%
and 51%, respectively. The Landholding Company remained
as if it was a subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results would continue to be accounted for and consolidated
in the accounts of the Group. The Landholding Company is
not engaged in any business activities other than holding a
land parcel and the properties on the land parcel and for
property investment.

The reasons for replacing the Local Partner with Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah as one of the shareholders of the Landholding
Company was because Mr. CHING Tsun Wah became a
Cambodian citizen and his involvement in the Group’s
hospitality supplies business in Cambodia significantly
increased. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has also developed necessary
and adequate knowledge and familiarity with the rules and
regulations, and expertise in the operations of the Group’s
hospitality supplies business in Cambodia through his
involvement in the business since 2018. The Group’s business
in Cambodia has also been maturing and has become largely
stable overtime. The Group’s management has also gained
expertise overtime from its operations in Cambodia.

In consideration of the foregoing, the Change of Local Partner
would better safeguard the interests of the Company in the
Landholding Company by having a Director as a shareholder
of the Landholding Company instead of the Local Partner; and
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah would be a more suitable candidate to
hold the 51% shareholding in the Landholding Company than
the Local Partner as he has greater familiarity with the Group
and its business.

The New VIE Structure

As the term of the 2021 Shareholders’ Agreement would
expire on 15 June 2024, Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah entered into the New Shareholders’
Agreement and the New Power of Attorney to make
amendments consequential to the entering into of the New
Shareholders’ Agreement on 22 May 2024.

The New Shareholders’ Agreement and the New Power of
Attorney replaced and superseded the 2021 Shareholders’
Agreement and the 2021 Power of Attorney respectively. The New
Shareholders’ Agreement and the New Power of Attorney,
together with the New Loan Agreement, the New Blank
Shareholders’ Resolution, the New Blank Share Transfer
Documents, the New Share Pledge Agreement and the New Call
Option Agreement are collectively the New Structured Documents,
pursuant to which the Group established the New VIE Structure.
Save for the New Shareholders’ Agreement and the New Power of
Attorney, all other terms and conditions of the New Structured
Documents remains unchanged, valid and in force.

(3)
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The principal terms of the New Structured Documents are set
out below:

(i)

(ii)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

New Loan Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as the
lender and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as the borrower for
an interest-free loan of US$2,500,000 from the date of
signing the New Loan Agreement until the time when
it is terminated for the sole purpose of payment for the
acquisition of 51% of the equity interests of the
Landholding Company. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah shall only
repay the loan, including any, taxes, charges,
indemnities, fees, costs and any expenses and all
obligations and liabilities in relation to the loan under
the New Loan Agreement to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by way of transferring 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah, and any and all shares held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah which accounts for 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company (the “Relevant Shares”) to
Ming Fai Holdings Limited or to any other person to be
designated by Ming Fai Holdings Limited.

New Power of Attorney

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, the Landholding Company and
the Company are the parties, pursuant to which
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has granted a general and
irrevocable power of attorney and proxy to the
Directors and their successors (including a liquidator
replacing the Directors) (the “Attorneys”) or its
appointees over all business activities concerning and
his right to vote as the ultimate shareholder of the
Landholding Company and has given the Attorneys or
its appointees the authority and rights to vote as his
proxy at any shareholders’ meeting and board meeting
to deal with all aspects of the management and
operations of the Landholding Company including, but
not limited to, the disposition or acquisition of assets,
appointment of officers and employees, day-to-day
business decisions, maintenance of records, declaration
of profits, signing minutes, filing documents with the
relevant companies registry, and other issues
concerning the Landholding Company which are
allowable by laws in force, and, for and on behalf of
Ming Fai Holdings Limited and as its designated person,
to collect all dividends or profit declared to him as a
shareholder of the Landholding Company, which are to
be transferred and assigned only to Ming Fai Holdings
Limited pursuant to the New Shareholders’” Agreement.
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(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

New Blank Shareholders’ Resolution

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed and thumb-printed
a blank shareholders’ resolution for the approval of the
disposal of any immovable property(ies) of the
Landholding Company.

New Blank Share Transfer Documents

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed the blank share
transfer documents that can be completed and filed
with the Ministry of Commerce of Cambodia in relation
to the Relevant Shares in the Landholding Company
held by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah.

New Share Pledge Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as pledgee
and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as pledgor and that
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has pledged the Relevant Shares,
including all dividends, interest or other income, paid
or payable after the date of the New Share Pledge
Agreement in respect of any of the Relevant Shares,
together with any and all rights and benefits that have
been created or exist with respect to the Relevant
Shares or any other shares in Mr. Ching Tsun Wah or
any other device in the nature of a security issued or
suffered by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, as security to
guarantee the performance of the obligations and
liabilities which is owing to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah pursuant to the New Loan
Agreement. Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has undertaken not
to dispose, transfer or otherwise encumber any right
attaching to shares which are pledged as Relevant
Shares without prior written approval from Ming Fai
Holdings Limited.

New Call Option Agreement

Ming Fai Holdings Limited, Mr. CHING Tsun Wah and
the Landholding Company are the parties, pursuant to
which the Landholding Company irrevocably granted
the exclusive right to Ming Fai Holdings Limited or its
assignees, from the date of signing of the New Call
Option Agreement indefinitely until all assets of the
Landholding Company are transferred to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or its assignees and registration
process required thereafter has been completed with
the relevant local authorities, to purchase all or part of
the assets of the Landholding Company at market
value, to the maximum extent allowed by the then
applicable Cambodian laws and regulations. Each of
the Landholding Company and Mr. Ching Tsun Wah
has undertaken to return to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
any consideration it received in the event that Ming Fai
Holdings Limited exercises such option to acquire the
assets of the Landholding Company.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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(vii)  New Shareholders’ Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. Ching Tsun Wah agreed on the rights and
obligations of them as shareholders of the Landholding
Company and also, restrictions against Mr. Ching Tsun
Wah with respect of, among other things, the disposal
of the Relevant Shares, distribution of dividends and
management and operation of the Landholding
Company, to parties other than Ming Fai Holdings
Limited or to any other person to be designated by
Ming Fai Holdings Limited, for indefinite term,
however, the term may be modified or terminated in
writing upon the parties’ agreement, provided that
such modification or termination complies with the
Listing Rules.

If there are any dividends, profits, benefits or interests
declared in relation to the interests of Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah as a shareholder in the Landholding Company, he
can only transfer and assign these interests to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or to any other person to be designated
by Ming Fai Holdings Limited, and ultimately, the
Company.

Reasons for and benefits of entering into the New
Shareholders” Agreement, the New Power of
Attorney and the New Structured Documents

As mentioned, the 2021 Shareholders’ Agreement has a term
of three years commencing from the date of the 2021
Shareholders” Agreement (i.e. 16 June 2021) and may be
renewed by writing every three years, subject to the
compliance of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the 2021 Shareholders’ Agreement would
expire on 15 June 2024, the New Structured Documents (in
particular, the New Shareholders’ Agreement and the New
Power of Attorney) will continue to confer the Landholding
Company the right to legally hold the land for the benefit of
the Company (via Ming Fai Holdings Limited and Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah) and such control and economic benefits from the
Landholding Company, the Land and the Properties will
continue to be passed back to Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (ultimately, the Company).

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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Based on the above and the advice from the Cambodia legal
advisers to the Company, and having considered that (i) all
other terms and conditions of the New Structured Documents
(excluding the New Shareholders’ Agreement and the New
Power of Attorney) shall remain unchanged, and the New
Shareholders’ Agreement and the New Power of Attorney are
on substantially the same terms as the 2021 Shareholders’
Agreement and the 2021 Power of Attorney respectively; and
(ii) the New Structured Documents is fundamental to the
Group's legal structure and business operations in relation to
its hospitality supplies business, the Directors (including the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) are of the view that the
New Structured Documents is unlikely to be deemed
ineffective or invalid under the applicable Cambodian laws
and regulations and that each of the arrangements under the
New VIE Structure conferring significant control and economic
benefits from the Landholding Company is enforceable under
relevant laws and regulations. The Directors (including the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) are also of the view that
the terms of the transactions contemplated under the New
Structured Documents are on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.

Risks and limitations relating to the New VIE Structure:

o Ming Fai Holdings Limited may bear economic risks as
the shareholder of the Landholding Company, and the
Group's financial performance may be adversely
affected and financial support may need to be provided
if the Landholding Company suffers losses.

o The New Structured Documents may not be as effective
as direct ownership in providing control over the
Landholding Company if Mr. CHING Tsun Wah fails to
perform his obligations under the New Structured
Documents or otherwise have disputes with the Group.

o There may be unforeseeable change of interpretation
and determination by the Cambodian government on
the compliance of the arrangement contemplated by
the New Structured Documents with Cambodian laws
and regulations.

o Potential conflicts of interests or potential disputes may
arise due to dual roles for Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as a
shareholder of the Landholding Company and an
Executive Director.
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o The Company does not maintain an insurance policy to
cover the risks relating to arrangement under the New
VIE Structure.

In order to mitigate the risks, the Board will review and
monitor the overall compliance of the New VIE Structure from
time to time. In case if there is any major issues arising from
the implementation and compliance with the New VIE
Structure or any regulatory enquiries from governmental
authorities, the Company will engage external legal advisers
and other professional advisers as appropriate.

The Group intends that and the terms of the New Structured
Documents have provided that the New VIE Structure will be
unwinded and the Group will directly hold 100% equity
interests in the Landholding Company and/or the Land and
the Properties when the Foreign Ownership Restrictions no
longer exist.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there is no unwinding
of any of the New Structured Documents or failure to unwind
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the New
Structured Documents are removed.

The revenue and assets of the Landholding Company subject
to the New Structure Documents was approximately HK$9.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
approximately HK$104.6 million as at 31 December 2024,
respectively.

Details of the New VIE Structure were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 16 June 2021 and 22 May
2024.

Ming Fai Enterprise (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. and Teng Xun
Limited, both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, have entered into lease agreements with the
Landholding Company on lands and/or buildings owned by
the Landholding Company for production facilities, office
premises, warehouses, function rooms, employee canteens
and/or dormitories of the workers of the Group (the “Leasing
Arrangements”). Since the Leasing Arrangements are carried
out by the Group in its ordinary course of business and in line
with the business scope of the Landholding Company and the
purpose of setting up the VIE Structure, and the Landholding
Company is not a connected person of the Company pursuant
to Rule 14A.18(1) of the Listing Rules and is a de facto
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the Leasing
Arrangements are not considered as transactions or connected
transactions under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

New Structured Documents

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, being the Executive Director, is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the New Structured
Documents, in particular, the New Loan Agreement and the New
Shareholders’ Agreement which provides for the transfer and
assignment of dividends, profits, benefits or interests by Mr. Ching
Tsun Wah to Ming Fai Holdings Limited, constitute a connected
transaction and a continuing connected transaction of the Company,
respectively, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to
the section headed “Information on the Structured Documents” for
details of the said connected transaction and continuing connected
transaction.

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the New Structured
Documents constitute a connected transaction and a continuing
connected transaction of the Company, respectively. As such, the
Company has applied to the Stock Exchange, and the Stock Exchange
has granted, the waivers from strict compliance with the requirement
of (i) setting a fixed term for the New Structured Documents under
Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules; and (ii) setting an annual cap for
the transactions under the New Structured Documents under Rule
14A.53 of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Except the rental charged by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial Company to
the Group constitute continuing connected transactions, which are
fully exempted from the relevant requirements of reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, none of the other significant
related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2024 set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
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Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares

Number of Shares held

REROREBROD2EFR

BEERMEER
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests (interests of Shares)
(beneficial (interests of controlled as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) Total 31 December 2024
R-ZZE-MF
+=A=t+-AH
ERITRG
BARSE Rk EEEE (734,262,6971% )
EERE (BEEEA)  (REED) (TREEERD) @it ZBNED
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 22,690,000 - 197,666,200 220,356,200 30.01%
BEELE (Notes 1 & 2)
(Braz122)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 4,000,000 - 32,499,600 36,499,600 4.97%
BEELE (Note 2)
(Btit2)
Mr. LIU Zigang 4,000,000 - 20,057,200 24,057,200 3.28%
217 W5 & (Note 3)
(B1&t3)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 - 4,509,000 0.61%
REBELE (Note 4)
(Hii#4)
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching - - 32,499,600 32,499,600 4.43%
bR )8 7 + (Note 2)
(Htet2)
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 600,000 - - 600,000 0.08%
FLER S A
Mr. Ng Bo Kwong (Note 5) 600,000 - - 600,000 0.08%
RIRKFEE (W 3#5)
Notes: Bt -
1 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, 1. 165,166,6000% i 1% HaProsper Well International

which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

2. 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which was 2
owned as to 50%, 19.23% and 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung,
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

3. 20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was 3.
wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Zigang.

4. 775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of 4
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah.

5. Mr. Ng Bo Kwong resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on 28 5,
February 2025.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors had any interest or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified by any Director, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), in
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares
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Number of Shares held
BERHEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Corporate Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests Interests  (interests of Shares)
(beneficial ~(interests of (beneficial controlled as at
Name owner) spouse) owner)  corporation) Total 31 December 2024
RZB-mE
= =5—1H
ERITRG
HARR RkER AEEER EEER (734,262,6971)
18 .2 (BREBA) (BEER) (BEREEA) (FELZEER) @t ZBAED
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) - - 165,166,600 - 165,166,600 22.49%
Prosper Well International Limited (#/7#7)
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) - 220,356,200 - - 220,356,200 30.01%
BRETT (Hit1)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 2) 49,089,300 - - 68,802,700 117,892,000 16.05%
David Michael WEBBSE 4 (#7:22)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 2) - - 68,802,700 - 68,802,700 9.37%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (#7:72)
RIEEERERAER AR | —F _NFFR
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Notes:

1. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an Executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by
Targetwise Trading Limited, which was owned as to 30.77% by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai. Mr. CHING Chi Fai also beneficially held 22,690,000 Shares.
Ms. LO Kit Ling, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to
be interested in the 220,356,200 Shares in which Mr. CHING Chi Fai
interested.

2. Based on the disclosure of interests notice of Preferable Situation Assets
Limited with the date of relevant event on 3 December 2021 received by
the Company, 66,174,000 Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB,
representing 9.01% of the issued Shares as at that day. Based on the
disclosure of interests notice of Mr. David Michael WEBB with the date of
relevant event on 11 June 2024 received by the Company, 68,802,700
Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB, who also beneficially held
49,089,300 Shares. Save as disclosed above, no further respective
disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David Michael WEBB and Preferable
Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2024 were received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
report, as at 31 December 2024, so far as it was known by or
otherwise notified by any Director, none of the substantial
shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), had any
interest or short positions in Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award
Scheme in which the Group’s employees, Directors, consultants or
advisers will be entitled to participate. The objectives of the Share
Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by certain
eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable incentives to attract and
retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance of
operations and future development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no Shares were acquired
from the market by the independent trustee of the Share Award
Scheme (Bank of Communications Trustee Limited), which is
independent and not connected with the Company. The number of
Shares available for grant under the Share Award Scheme were
10,424,000 Shares and 10,424,000 Shares as at 1 January 2024 and
31 December 2024 respectively. No Shares have been granted to
eligible persons up to the date of this report under the Share Award
Scheme since its adoption.
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Subject to the scheme rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion select any eligible
person for participation in the Share Award Scheme as a selected
person, and grant such number of awarded Shares to any selected
person at no consideration and in such number and on and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may in its absolute discretion
determine.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares
which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected person under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the
scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject
to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on its adoption date (i.e. 23 September 2016).

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 September 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of
this report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries;
nor for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
were entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2024.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of
this report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into or subsisted
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the

Company’s total number of issued Shares was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made
donations amounting to approximately HK$1.0 million.

AUDITOR

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise accountability and
transparency, direct and regulate the business ethical conduct of the
Company to protect and uphold the best interest of the Shareholders
and stakeholders and achieve sustainability.

The Company applies the “Corporate Governance Code” as set out
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code"”) to establish its
corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except the
deviation of code provision C.2.1 that the Board has not appointed
an individual to the post of chief executive officer up to the date of
this report and the role of the chief executive officer has been
performed collectively by all the Executive Directors, including the
Chairman of the Company. The Board considers that this
arrangement allows contributions from all Executive Directors with
different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company’s policies and strategies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. NG Bo Kwong (resigned on 28 February 2025)
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years while each Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year. All the
aforesaid service contracts or letters of appointment may be
terminated by either party giving written notice in accordance with
the terms of service contracts or letters of appointment. All the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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Mr. CHING Chi Fai (the Chairman of the Company and an Executive
Director) and Mr. CHING Chi Keung (Executive Director) are brothers.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (Executive Director) is the son of Mr. CHING
Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Nomination policy

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee would assess the suitability of a proposed
candidate based on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

character and integrity;

professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Group’s business and corporate
strategy;

potential time commitment to discharge duties as a Director
and/or committee member and other directorships and
significant commitments;

Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted
for achieving the Board'’s diversity;

relevant requirements as stipulated under the Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, other applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;
and

independence requirements for the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Nomination procedures

Appointment of Director(s)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

The Nomination Committee shall upon receipt of the
biographical details of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate the
candidate(s) based on the selection criteria of the nomination
policy to determine his/her qualification as a Director and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration. The
selected individual(s) will be subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her initial appointment as Director(s) in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

For any person as nominated by a Shareholder for election as
a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the
qualification of the candidate(s) shall be evaluated first by the
Nomination Committee and then by the Board based on the
selection criteria of the nomination policy. The Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of such
proposed election as Director(s) at the general meeting of the
Company.
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Re-election of Director(s) BEEE

o The Nomination Committee shall review and determine e REAZESKRINRAERTESRE
whether the retiring Director(s) continue to meet the selection ENPTEIRA MBS 2 FiBAER| -
criteria of the nomination policy and make recommendation WHETESSELHER -EFEHK
for the Board’s consideration. The Board shall then make RABRRBAFRE L HMBEREEH
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the BERRRIELES -
proposed re-election of Director(s) at the annual general
meeting.

Board diversity EEEREZ Tt

Summary of the Board diversity policy and measurable EFEdEZTEBEHMERIJGE

objectives H1Z

The Board diversity policy of the Company setting out the approach ZARARIZEEFSME L T(LREHI BEH
to diversity on the Board. The Company continuously seeks to EE&@KE % (b2 it - AR T —EBEHK
enhance its effectiveness and to maintain the highest standards of 1EFAEBRMREFSTSKEZ AT ESE
corporate governance and recognise diversity at Board level as an UANMRBFEEEECRBENZ TILAEE RS
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage, Board EF¥MEBE X WZTEEEEE2RE
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including %7t BFEBTERMR] - £ - X &
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, #HES & Tk BERLHE i AH KL
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of fRISEH - IRZEZE@NEZTSNEFEREAR
service. The Nomination Committee and the Board will also take into SBZEKEEANTH I EEFEEEZEES
account factors based on the Group’s business model and specific BHEZE - BKERMEBREAZEENRT S
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit #EE&# K 2 BRI MERE °

and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Diversified perspective ZTILEE

The following table illustrates the Board’s composition: TRINTEFGKE ZHEK :

Designation EDs NED INEDs

Bt wnE S BE

As at 31 December 2024 4

= = e =t

As at the date of this report

R & B H 3

Gender Male Female
451 51 g

As at 31 December 2024
WZZE-_mOFE+=A=+—H
As at the date of this report
i = R

Age group 40-49 50-59 > 60
F AR 40F49 50%59 6083 £
As at 31 December 2024 4
R-ZE-_mE+=—A=+—H
As at the date of this report
R & B H

Length of service (years) <5 6-10 > 11
BRS S 5 (£F) S5 AT 6210 1184 E
As at 31 December 2024 6
R-ZE-mE+=-—A=+—H

As at the date of this report
R & B H

|
=

3

“

EDs: Executive Directors HE  HITEF
NED: Non-Executive Director FHE  HHTEF
INEDs: Independent Non-Executive Directors BE  BUIHTEE

RERRZERARAR | — T _WFEFR
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Our Directors with different educational background possess
diversified expertise and skills, including industrial, business
management, sales and marketing, accounting and finance, import
and export, hotel development consultancy, strategies development
and management consultancy. The valuable experience and expertise
they have brought to our business are critical for the long-term
growth of the Group.

The Nomination Committee and the Board reviewed the
implementation of the Board diversity policy and considered that the
diversity of the Board is sufficient and that the Board diversity policy
is effective.

Gender diversity

Our Board has one female Director. The Board targets to maintain at
least the current level of female representation and is committed to
take opportunities to increase the proportion of female Board
members overtime as and when suitable candidates are identified.
Independent professional search firm(s) may be engaged as one of
the channels to help in identifying potential successors to the Board
for achieving gender diversity, as and when appropriate.

As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio in our workforce
(including senior management) was 71% of female and 29% of
male. The gender diversity of workforce (including senior
management) was appropriate taking into account the business
models and operational needs. We will continually ensure the equal
opportunity of employment, compensation, training and promotion
for all staff to be based on their competence, knowledge, experience
and individual performance, regardless of gender.

Board independence

The Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and one of them has appropriate accounting
professional qualifications. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-Executive Director an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
meet the independence requirements as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mechanisms for ensuring independent views and input

The Company has in place mechanisms whereby Directors can express
their independent views in different manners through formal and
informal means, including regular Board meetings, the annual meeting
between the Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Directors,
interactions with other Board members (including the Chairman) outside
the boardroom. The Board reviewed the implementation of such
mechanism and considered that it is effective.
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Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the Group
and monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the strategic
objectives of the Group. Day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the Executive Directors or the senior management in
charge of each division. All Directors (including Non-Executive
Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors) have been
consulted on all major and material matters and decisions of the
Group.

The Board has delegated some of its function to the Board
committees, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Board Committees” below. Matters specifically reserved for the
Board, including convening Shareholders’ meetings, implementing
the Shareholders’ resolutions, determining the Group’s business
plans and strategies, formulating the Group’s annual budgets and
final accounts, formulating proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions and for increase or reduction of share capital,
determining the Group’s corporate structure, formulating investment
plans as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by the Articles of Association of the Company.

Meetings’ attendance

The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee
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meetings and annual general meeting of the Company during the FRARFEZTEEZ ZEE@RLER
year ended 31 December 2024 were as follows: ﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁf—?—ﬁDT :
Number of meetings attended/held
i/ BHeERH
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Executive  Investment Annual
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
58 BHERR  R4ERE  GMERR  WGEE  BREER  BRES
£ #3 t3 #3 #3 #3 x#
Executive Directors #irgs
Mr. CHING Chi Fai EEELE 44 - 1 22 414 N N
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BERLE 44 - - - 44 - i
Mr. LIU Zigang 8FRI%E 44 - - - 44 - on
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEELE 414 - - - 44 - N
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEELE 414 - - - 4/4 N N
Non-Executive Director FUTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching R¥Eat 44 - - - - - 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFH/7ES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan Hits ke 44 33 - 0 - - 1
Mr. NG Bo Kwong (resigned on REAEER-E-RE
28 February 2025) ZAZT/HEHE) 44 ElE! - n 2 : 111
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BRerE 44 33 i n - - 1
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Btttk 414 33 1 22 - N N
Total number of meetings held EETeRAY 4 3 1 2 4 1 1
AEERERERA | ZEZHFFR
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee
and the Investment Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, who have appropriate accounting professional
qualifications and relevant expertise. Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan,
NG Bo Kwong (resigned on 28 February 2025) and SUN Eric Yung
Tson are members of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in
fulfilling its audit duties through the review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting system, risk management system and
internal control procedures, details of responsibilities are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which are published
on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the website of
the Company.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2024 are summarised below:

o reviewed the interim and annual results, the relevant
statements and reports of the Group, the significant financial
reporting judgements, in order to monitor the integrity and
whether in accordance with the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the applicable accounting

standard;

o reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of
engagement;

o reviewed management letter and any materials queries raised

by the external auditor to the management in relation to the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management'’s responses;

o reviewed the key audit matters and discussed with external
auditor and the management;

. reviewed the non-audit services of the external auditors and
the non-audit service fees payable;

o reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external
auditor and the effectiveness of audit process;

o recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external
auditor and the audit fee payable to the external auditor for
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;
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. reviewed the effectiveness of financial control, risk management
and internal control systems involving financial, operational and
compliance control and internal audit function of the Group;

o reviewed the internal audit report prepared by the internal
auditor and the management’s responses to the findings by
the internal audit function;

o considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan;
and
o reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, budget of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal audit functions.

Auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the fees paid by the Company
to the external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers for
audit services was approximately HK$3.1 million and non-audit
services regarding tax consultancy was approximately HK$0.4 million.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors as members, namely Messrs. SUN Eric Yung
Tson and KWONG Tony Wan Kit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set out in the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which are
published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are summarised below:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board;

o reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
diversity policy of the Company;

o recommended to the Board regarding the re-election of directors
for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting; and

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as member and all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan as the Chairman and
Messrs. NG Bo Kwong (resigned on 28 February 2025), SUN Eric
Yung Tson and KWONG Tony Wan Kit as members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy
and structure, the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and senior management, and the remuneration of Non-Executive
Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors, details of
responsibilities are set out in the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, which are published on the HKEXnews
website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are summarised below:

o with reference to the prevailing market conditions, considered
and reviewed the remuneration packages, including housing
allowance, discretionary bonus, performance, time
commitment and responsibilities of each Executive Director
and the senior management, and recommended for the
Board’s approval;

o considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy;
and
o reviewed the respective letter of appointment and director’s

fee of each Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Director and recommended for the Board'’s
approval.

The emoluments of the five Executive Directors who are also
regarded as the senior management of the Company are disclosed in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument of the senior management other than the five
Executive Directors by band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is
as follows:

FHWEES

FMEEedm N TES (BERBEE
BKE) REEBIIERNITES (AL
EARERE RERAEE(RZT-_RF=A
Z+NBHET  BERBEERBRGELE
HAEKE) MK -

FMZEECREANAREZ H B R
REE RTEERSREBABZHFME
B FMTEERBUFATEZTZHER
EXeRhES BEFRIRTHEZES
2B E E (TIE B X P 58 5 M uh R
NE AL -

FMEEeRNEBE T _NF+-_A=1+—
BIEFEETZIEREMT

. RERTISRLEE R ESNITE
ENEREERABZEFMNGE (B
FERRM BBEL)  RBE W
ZEREBE  WEBESSHA

. EEMBAAEEZHEMBE &

. ERRAESTERANESFNTE
EMEVIFNTEEZRERNRAEE ©

FRATER(HTAARANSREEAR)
B 38 B 70 A & B S SRR P FE37 R 4R B o

BE-B-_NF+=-A=1+—ALFEED
EERESOEREEAL FREIMH
TES) HHBEIIMT :

Number of Individual(s)

A

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

L 21,000,000/ 7T

1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T =
1,500,001/8 7.2 2,000,000/ 7T -
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is the Chairman and Messrs. CHING Chi Keung,
LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung are members.

The Executive Committee has been delegated with the general
powers to deal with the daily operations and management of the
Group, including but not limited to, setting up new companies,
opening bank accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing the
Common Seal, issue of Shares upon exercise of any subscription or
conversion rights under any share schemes of the Company, warrants
or convertible notes.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and Mr. KEUNG Kwok
Hung as member, and one Independent Non-Executive Director,
namely, Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit as member.

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to
assess, consider and approve/recommend any potential investments
and/or divestments of the Group, which are less than US$20 million,
or 5% of the total market capitalisation of the Company, in
aggregate in each financial year, whichever is lower, and approve
each investment/divestment reaching/exceeding HK$3 million but not
exceeding 10% of the aforesaid aggregate amount.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the CG Code. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Board reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, trainings and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the Listing Rules, the
compliance of the Model Code by the Directors and employees, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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Directors’ continuous professional development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All the Directors understand the
importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating any suitable training or reading relevant
materials in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has received from each Director his/her training record
of participation in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2024:

EEZREEXRER

REBCETR  2REFERSEBEFEDR
R AR BRI F 2 R MR BE - RRER
RERBEEERBEZERAARIGRTEZER
THEZSFELER - 2BEFNERFEE
ERREEN  WABLEEMES IS
B ERBAEN  ABERIEFHEEFZHM
BREIREE  AAFERBENEZTEHARSE
REBEE_T-_NF+-_A=+—HIEFES
BB EEEER 2B

Type of trainings
b2 E i

Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEELE

Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEEEE

Mr. LIU Zigang 21 55 A&

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEELRYE

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEM T E
Non-Executive Director FHITES

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching FeR &5 20 +
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan LI S A&

Mr. NG Bo Kwong (resigned on 28 February 2025)

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson HREREE
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Bk

Type of trainings:
A: attending webinar(s)/seminar(s)
B: reading materials

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group,
and of results and cash flow for the financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that
the Group’s financial statements will be published in a timely
manner.

The statement of the reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group of the auditor of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 57 to 61 of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness annually. The Group’s risk
management and internal control systems includes a well-defined
management structure with limits of authority which is designed for
the achievement of business objectives, safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring proper maintenance of
books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established
risk management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the
business to be addressed by management. At least on an annual
basis, management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks
considered to be significant.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The Audit
Committee and the Board conduct a review of the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group annually.
The Board appointed a professional consulting firm with the
responsibility to conduct the internal audit function and assess risks
of the Company and perform the agreed-upon procedures in relation
to the internal controls of the business of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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The review of the systems for the year ended 31 December 2024,
included but not limited to, the Group’s ability to cope with its
business and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal control
systems; the results of internal audit work; the communication with
the Board in relation to result of risks and internal control review; the
significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the status of compliance with the rules and
regulations. The Audit Committee and the management will follow
up the suggestions from the aforesaid professional consulting firm to
further improve the risk management and internal control systems.
The Board satisfies with the scope of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considers that the systems
are effective and adequate.

Procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group discloses inside information to the public in a timely
manner as soon as reasonably practicable, as required by the SFO,
unless such information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Prior to the fully disclosure of inside information
to the public, the Group ensures that the information is kept strictly
confidential. The inside information will only be shared with
employees who have a legitimate need to know and are bound by
confidentiality obligations. If the Group determines that maintaining
the necessary level of confidentiality is not feasible or suspects that
confidentiality may have been compromised, it shall immediately
disclose the inside information to the public. The Group is committed
to ensuring that all information contained in published documents is
not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires equal
disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders communication policy of the Company has been
adopted to ensure that the Shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
in the Company to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong.

Corporate communications will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding.
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Information on the Company’s website is updated on a regular basis.
Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is also
published on the website of the Company. Such information includes
financial reports, ESG reports, results announcements, circulars and
notices of general meetings and other regulatory disclosures.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. The Company will
use general meetings as a tool to effectively communicate with
Shareholders and allow Shareholders a reasonable opportunity to
pose questions to the Board. Board members, chairmen of Board
committees or their delegates and the external auditor will attend
the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Having considered that the multiple communication channels in place
and properly implemented during the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders communication policy is
effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures of convening an extraordinary general
meeting by the Shareholders

Pursuant to article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any
one or more members deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the voting rights, on a one vote per Share
basis, of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened
on the written requisition of any one member of the Company which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office,
specifying the objects of the meeting and the resolutions to be added
to the meeting agenda, and signed by the requisitionist(s). If the
Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolution at general meetings under the Articles of Association of
the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting by following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3,
8/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

.

pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 62 to 148, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended:;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment of
the expected credit losses of trade and bills receivables.

Key Audit Matter
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Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and bills
receivables

Refer to Notes 3(a)(iv), 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount of trade and
bills receivables amounted to HK$819.0 million, which accounted
for 41.0% of the Group’s total assets. Provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected credit
losses. Receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on their credit
risk characteristics and assessed collectively for credit losses allowance.
When measuring the expected credit losses, the Group considered
the credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by taking into
consideration current conditions and forward looking factors.

We focused on this area because the assessment of the expected credit
losses is subject to significant management judgement involved in the
estimation of the credit loss allowance.
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BEETERE (R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

In auditing the recognition of credit losses allowance of trade and bills
receivables, we have performed the following key procedures on the
assessment prepared by management.

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s internal control
and assessment process of estimating the expected credit losses
allowances of trade and bills receivables, evaluated and validated the
key controls.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors associated with the accounting estimates for credit loss
allowance of trade and bills receivables.

We assessed the appropriateness of the grouping and the credit losses
provisioning methodology adopted by management, discussed with
management, for the details of their evaluations and challenged the
underlying information referenced by management, which included
comparing with external evidence obtained from independent research
on publicly available information, as well as forward looking estimates,
performing ageing analysis, examining the historical settlement records
and testing of the subsequent settlements of the customers.

We tested the accuracy of the aging analysis of the trade and bills
receivables on a sample basis.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
provision for loss allowance.

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of expected credit losses of
trade and bills receivables were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Chun Yu.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER

As at 31 December W+ —-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EB-MF —T-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Goodwill Bk 9(a) 5,366 5,397
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 6 403,864 393,537
Right-of-use assets FREEE 7() 86,519 96,759
Investment properties LAY 8 44,243 45,188
Intangible assets EREE 9(b) 304 323
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISTRE E 10 2,366 3,059
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE 15 5,235 8,475
Investment in an associated company R—EBE R RRNRE 5,953 5,363
Investments in joint ventures REEhENKRE 217 208
Other financial assets at amortised cost Tﬁﬁ&ﬁé&$§‘]ﬂ§2ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ§ 14 = 3
Total non-current assets kRBEELTE 554,067 558,312
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 11 307,914 329,086
Other current assets EReEE 15 49,547 66,426
Tax recoverable AT Uk Bl # B 817 677
Other financial assets at amortised cost ~ IREESHR AR 2 b FEE 14 10,818 9,320
Amounts due from joint ventures EYE & ERIE 35 811 763
Amount due from an associated company & — & B & X B FIE 13 3,373 3,822
Trade and bills receivables EIWE SRR EE 12 727,731 609,771
Pledged bank deposit BEHERIRITER 16 11,636 11,958
Cash and cash equivalents HekIRE&EEER 17 328,621 375,093
Total current assets REEERE 1,441,268 1,406,916
Total assets EEARE 1,995,335 1,965,228
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners ARAREFA
of the Company LR
Share capital fi% AR 20 7,343 7,343
Reserves fE 1,264,622 1,206,694
Final dividend proposed EE AR 32 51,398 36,713
1,323,363 1,250,750
Non-controlling interests IR RE = (60,026) (57,534)
Total equity mrER 1,263,337 1,193,216

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTI
REEEBER
As at 31 December W+=-A=

2024 2023
—E_\F —E=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ika FH T FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTISTRAE 10 7,563 9,593
Other non-current payables H b IE R B FE (T IR 23 8,172 9,023
Borrowings =3 21 1,844 2,164
Lease liabilities HEEaE 7(a) 289 2,636
_ Total non-current liabilites  FhBAfes® 1788 23,416
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRI 22 263,714 282,462
Accruals and other payables FEET B R H 4B FRIE 23 383,603 366,932
Current income tax liabilities BNEfFS M aE 22,627 29,007
Borrowings B&E 21 24,253 47,081
Lease liabilities HEaE 7(a) 2,679 5,680
Loans from non-controlling interests REFEERER 2 E R 24 16,997 17,211
Dividends payable FERT AR B 257 223
_ Total current liabilites  nBRfeE 714130 748,59
Total liabilities BEEAHE 731,998 772,012
Total equity and liabilities HEZKEE 1,995,335 1,965,228

FOLEV48EMREMBEHRENR S _AF =
A+ "BEESel TN TESEKE
HRE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 148 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2025 and were signed on its
behalf.

CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
BEE BeE
Director Director

EE EFE

bR A B ER EREEREMN 2 T —5F

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ll‘/—_r\ %ﬁl‘l&

For the year ended 31 December HE+-—A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
g o 113 =%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiz FET FTAT
Revenue A 5 2,311,250 2,067,273
Cost of sales HEMAK 25 (1,731,355) (1,565,529)
Gross profit EF 579,895 501,744
Other income, net Hi WA F 58 26 7,721 10,958
Distribution costs DA 25 (246,444) (233,642)
Administrative expenses THFEX 25 (155,685) (136,512)
Net (impairment losses)/reversal of impairment 4 &4 2 OREERE) /
losses on financial assets A EE B BT E 25 (11,833) 1,515
Operating profit A 173,654 144,063
Finance income B RS 28 5,151 5,916
Finance costs B FE RN 28 (2,885) (6,250)
Share of profit of an associated company JE1G — B2 N BLEF 1,371 253
Share of profit of joint ventures F§15A§ﬁ¥/ﬁnﬂ 9 92
Net fair value changes on investment properties % & ¥ % 7 AL EE F F58 8 262 -
Profit before income tax Rt ATER R 177,562 144,074
Income tax expenses FrisBiF < 30 (38,449) (48,443)
Profit for the year FERF 139,113 95,631
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Ht2m (FE) W
Item that maybe subsequently Bt e B 72
reclassified to profit or loss Bw s EHH
Currency translation differences ERBRE =R (12,710) (9,434)
Item that will not be subsequently BEEBETREHNSHEE
reclassified to profit or loss Bw s EHH
Currency transaction differences EEmEEE 1,626 -
Revaluation gain upon transfer from property, %% - WE KR EEA
plant and equipment to investment properties % & ¥ %8 7 & i ez - 11,730
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHWHAE 128,029 97,927
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: ~ FE{EEER%F/ (B#E)
Owners of the Company A/ T%EA 143,231 104,181
Non-controlling interests IR = (4,118) (8,550)
139,113 95,631
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EBEEEZEKRE (HE)
for the year attributable to: AR
Owners of the Company RABEA A 130,521 105,809
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR = (2,492) (7,882)
128,029 97,927
Earnings per share attributable to owners &2 FEEAEEESREF
of the Company (expressed in HK cents) (B4l %IR)
Basic K 31(@a) 19.8 14.4
Diluted e 31(b) 19.8 14.4

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be |yt 4= & 2 F Uy 25 = &
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. RE o

B BB Y 2 B R — B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE§PI[\I EQUITY
an\ 1‘ ’\?‘“’z@%

For the year ended 31 December #HE+Z—A=+—HLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EATBE AR
Shares held
for share
award Other Non-
Share  scheme (the Share Reserves controlling Total
capital  “Scheme”)  premium (Note 18)  Sub-total interests equity
ARARD
S8 (5 8)) HtbfeE
Bx  BEZRH RBHEE  En Nt FERES fgs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn T ThL Thn T Thn
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZE-Z5-B-Hezf&8 7343 (8,196) 613,261 568,725 1,181,133 (49652  1,131481
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EkE/ (58
Profit{loss) for the year REERH/ (BR) = - - 104,181 104,181 (8,550) 95,631
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ Eft 2 (518) /b
Currency translation differences EHhg e o = = (10,102) (10,102) 668 (9.434)
Revaluation gain upon transfer from property, #£47% - BiE RRBEARE
plant and equipment to investment NER CERYE (Hi8)
properties (Note 8) - - - 1,730 11,730 - 11,730
| Totaomprehensiveneomelos9)  2AME/(BRIER ciepia, ] . g 00 A (80 R
Transactions with owners in their HEEAETZRE
capacity as owners (EFASH)
Final dividend relating to 2022 ECCEEZRERE - - - 21,715) (21,715) - 21.715)
Interim dividend relating to 2023 “ECCEERERS = = = (14.477) (14.477) - (14.477)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZB-ZE+ZA=t-B2
e 7343 (8,196) 613,261 638,342 1,250,750 (57,534) 1,193,216
Balance at 1 January 2024 RZE-ME-B-Az&8 7,343 (8,196) 613,261 638,342 1,250,750 (57,534) 1,193,216
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EkE/ (B8
Profit/loss) for the year rEESH/ (BB d - - 143,231 143,231 (4118 139,113
Other comprehensive (loss)/income  HA 2 (58) /K
Currency translation differences ERAEEE - - - (12,710) (12,710) 1,626 (11,084)
. Toalampretersnemomelios NSSISMBRARN 88 sl hoeeto LML DR R T
Transactions with owners in their HREARGTZRE
capacity as owners (AEBASH)
Final dividend relating to 2023 (Note 32) :T:_H LRERE (Wit32) - - - (361910  (36,191) - (36,191)
Interim dividend relating to 2024 (Note 32) —E-MEE 2R HRE (H:232) - - = (21.717) (21,717) - 21.117)
Balance at 31 December 2024 RZBZMETZA=+-AZ
& 1343 (8,196) 613,261 710,955 1,323,363 (60,026) 1,263,337
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in | it 45 & #E 25 & ) & /& L2 BB Y 2 M 5 — 6f
conjunction with the accompanying notes. FIE
BIEE R R AR A | —E_FFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n{ﬁ ﬂﬁﬁﬁilﬂbéﬁi%ﬁ:

For the year ended 31 December HE+-—A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
“E-ME —EB=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FTET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RETBNRERE
Cash generated from operations KELETENIEE 33(@) 161,647 273,679
Interests paid ERTFE (2,885) (6,250)
Income tax paid BE@ATEH (45,630) (38,773)
Net cash generated from RETHFEREFR
___operating activites 13132 228,656
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B AYI % - BE K& B (77,790) (57,611)
Purchase of intangible assets BAERFEE (635) (470)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BAGCHEEE - (2,540)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - FEMRE
plant and equipment Fr8 IR 33(b) 1,907 520
Interests received B U F & 5,151 5,916
Receipts from government grants LT E IS 47 B 901 776
Dividends received from an associated B U —fE B & A
company A% 8 943 124
__Netcash used in investing activities =~ RR=BAAREFR (69.523) C e
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings BEEmRERE 33(c) = 33,149
Repayments of borrowings EBREE 33(c) (22,781) (94,636)
Principal elements of lease payments MENRH AR H 33(c) (5,714) (5,591)
Dividends paid to the Company’s ENARFRERE
shareholders (57,873) (36,160)
Repayments of loan from non-controlling REFERERERZ
interests BERIB 33() (86) (172)
__Netcash used in financing activities =~ BMEZBFAREFE | (86,454) | ey
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁ%&ﬁ%%fﬁlﬁ B
cash equivalents W) R (42,845) 71,961
Cash and cash equivalents FyMReRBER
at the beginning of the year Z£EIEH 375,093 305,356
Exchange loss on cash and RekFAEFEEHD
cash equivalents b H 518 (3,627) (2,224)
Cash and cash equivalents FRONRERES
at the end of the year ZEEE 17 328,621 375,093
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in Li#ll4R& 3R & i = 5% FE B BE M < W& — 6f
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B -

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies products,
trading of operating supplies and equipment and manufacturing
and trading of health care and hygienic products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 May
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its registered
address is at the offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman
Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 26 March 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

()  Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have
been prepared in accordance to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

HKFRSs comprise the following authoritative literature:

° Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
° Hong Kong Accounting Standards

° Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (R)

=)
)

2

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

(iir)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
investment properties, which were measured at fair
value.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards at its annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2024:

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants — amendments to HKAS 1

- Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback -
amendments to HKFRS 16

- Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
— amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

= Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BEMBHERME (K)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 MREERSTHEEH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 B EE @)

(iv) New and amended standards and interpretation

not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and amendments
to accounting standards and interpretation have been
published that are not mandatory for this reporting
period and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements”, introducing new requirements
that will help to achieve comparability of the financial
performance of similar entities and provide more
relevant information and transparency to users. Even
though HKFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or
measurement of items in the consolidated financial
statements, its impacts on presentation and disclosure
are expected to be pervasive, in particular those related
to the consolidated income statement and providing
management-defined performance measures within the
consolidated financial statements.

Management is currently assessing the detailed
implications of applying the new standard on the
Group's consolidated financial statements. The Group
expects to apply the new standard from its mandatory
effective date of 1 January 2027. Retrospective
application is required, and so the comparative
information for the financial year ending 31 December
2026 will be restated in accordance with HKFRS 18.

In addition to the abovementioned changes in
presentation and disclosures, the Group is in the
process of assessing the impact of adopting other
new accounting standards and amendments to
accounting standards and interpretation on its current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

SRR ERE R AR

(iv) R ERAB)FTET R AEAE

GEAIR 2 FE

EEMETHETENRE
AFEA R R ERERT  ER
¥R 5 HA R R R 08 Bl AT
B HAREAREEEFRA -

&8 B 75 A 185 S
BREB G ERF IR
BRERZE]  SIAHE
KB HRBE B RMB
RPERALME - A /A
BHRRAERTEERBELE
BERENEFR - BEEE
MBREERNF 1SRG
FERAMBRRIAR WE
RHFE - BRBGHZ
MBEEFREZNOTE L
HESKRE WS RAMAIA
BARRGEMBEHRERPIR
HHEEEERNRRIER

BRI LAY A e # R
HAKEREMBHRROF
ATE AEBEAHN
T_EF-A—HRHIEXR
BEFMBERIHEL - AR
FEEYPER AUEBZE—
HepsEine= B =~ H
FENLERERBRIEETE
PSS ERIFE 18R B R
BE#MZS -

B2 MEENESE
Sh - AR B IEERF AR E
¥ gt R MG ER R
E3ENCHERS =
R E AR R YRR R
AERGELENTE

ZENFEFR

69



70

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHERRME (K)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

2.2.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i)

(ii)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.2.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (refer
to Note 2.2.1(iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VRN

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group has investments
in joint ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (refer to Note 2.2.1(iv)
below), after initially being recognised at cost in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group'’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.2.8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHERRME (K)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(v) Changes in ownership interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 RREREERSTHEREH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 EXAESBEBME @)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.2 Business combinations 222 XFEE G

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
)

2

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.2 Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently re-measured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BEMBHERME (K)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.4 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year-end
exchanges rate are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHERRME (K)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Group companies (Continued)

o all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group'’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial year in which they
are incurred.

Freehold land that has an indefinite useful life are
not subject to depreciation and is tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost over its estimated
useful lives of 20 years.

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost over their estimated useful lives, at the
following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements Shorter of 10 years or

lease period

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 33%
Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

BB ERME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction including
borrowing costs attributable to the construction during
the period of construction. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use.

2.2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. Subsequently, it is
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined annually by external valuer. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices from less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuer with changes in fair values recorded in
profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant
and equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses
a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.7 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.2.2.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs")
for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes, being
the operating segments (Note 5).

2.2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBmEAME (F)

AN
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2

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

(=)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.9 Financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FvOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Measurement

The Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(1) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, amount due from
an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments (“HKFRS 9”), which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group measures the expected credit loss as either
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

2.2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling and distribution costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHERRME (K)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 RRAREERSTHEREH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 EXAEHEME @)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.11 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
bills and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and bills receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade and bills receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade and bills receivable are uncollectible, they
are written off against the allowance account for trade
and bills receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in profit or loss.

22.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.

22.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date.

2.2.15 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries, associated company and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely amount
or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

For employees in Cambodia, the Group pays monthly
contributions for the compulsory pension scheme
to National Social Security Fund (“NSSF”), a publicly
administered social security scheme for pension
in Cambodia. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. The deferred
income tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming
the property will be recovered entirely through sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary income differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.16 Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render
the related services are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(i)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision, where appropriate, is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERMBHERRME (F)

2

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.16 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is
recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled
within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is
not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant government authorities for its employees
in the PRC and contribute to these plans based
on certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the
relevant government authorities.

The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees under these
plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

22.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Pension obligations (Continued)

(v)

The group companies in participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution scheme in
accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules of MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’
salaries, up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
employee per month. The assets of MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the group
companies in an independently administered
fund.

For employees in Cambodia, the Group pays
monthly contributions for the compulsory pension
scheme to National Social Security Fund (“NSSF"),
a publicly administered social security scheme for
pension in Cambodia. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when they are due.

There were no forfeited contributions (by
employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions)
to offset existing contributions under the defined
contribution schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employee without possibility of
withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after balance
sheet date are discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
)

2

MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(vi) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (shares or options) of the
Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the shares
or options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the shares or options
granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and;

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

2

RBEEENRSTHEREE @)

2.2 EXAEHEME @)

2216 1E 5 %8 7l (48)
i) RG89 B %

AEBREABES
8 AR SR B E
T8 Ei ARAERS
BEXBEZRBESAE
RAREBATA (I
MRERE) 2KE-
% & 8 PTIE HAR 75 2A
BB R D 3R Y
B2 RFELERR
P - BT BEE
T32EZ R LB X
BREZAFEEE

s BEEMMSBR
B (n—EE
BAA(E)

o  TEEEMRE
RIEMHRRE
B2 (B
MEBREERE
EHE 2 B 6
h-HERKE
8): &

e BREAMIIERE
&z 2 (I
BREEZHETE) °

ETERBIRTEE
EERBEHATEHER
MR EEE NERE
o R S 5 B HIR

R M ATA i E R
fERAF R 2 BRI A X ©
REEBRAKR - B
BRI R BHREFE
M5 FE B IR A TR
BB A e fhEr -
ARAEBEERY
RIEFHERT (B) &
FE YHESELRE



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

22.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(vi) Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

When the options are cancelled during vesting
periods, the Group recognises immediately
the amount that otherwise would have been
recognised for services received over the
remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will
include the incremental fair value granted in
the measurement of the amount recognised for
services received as consideration for the equity
instruments granted. The incremental fair value
granted is the difference between the fair value
of the modified equity instrument and that of the
original equity instrument, both estimated as at
the date of the modification. If the modification
occurs during the vesting period, the incremental
fair value granted is included in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received
over the period from the modification date until
the date when the modified equity instruments
vest, in addition to the amount based on the grant
date fair value of the original equity instruments,
which is recognised over the remainder of the
original vesting period. If the modification occurs
after vesting date, the incremental fair value
granted is recognised immediately.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERMBHERRME (F)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimates of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation of the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminated sales within the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers, the customer has accepted the products,
the collection of the related consideration is probable
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under accruals and
other payables as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.19 Government grant

Grant from the government is recognised at its fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grant relating to costs is deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match it with the costs that it is intended to
compensate.

Government grant relating to property, plant and
equipment and service concession arrangement is
included in accruals and other payables and is credited
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
)

2

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.20 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments (if applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain

extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRERME (F)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 REBERSHBREH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies 22 EREFBEBE @)
(Continued)
2220 Leases (Continued) 220 A& (&)
The lease payments are discounted using the interest HMENREABEEMEEN
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily R = BLIR o {6 7k BE HE E 5% Fl
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the R(KEE E’] a"ﬂ E—MmHxE
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, gerETE) c Qe AARE A
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to a;fa TAﬂ T - BNE 51 A& AR
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset AR B E IR 5 LAME
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar HE - KRR RIEHEE
economic environment with similar terms, security and BEAFTHAEEERENE
conditions. EFfVAEBANESMAS
T FIEK o
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the ARETNEERNE  X&
Group uses recent third-party financing received by & 5% A3 {8 Bl A AR A BT Uk B
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to THIE = RMEEAREE -
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party WHETHE ARG G KEE
financing was received, nature of the lease assets and =77 B & LA PR B & AR B
the terms and conditions of the leases, such as the lease B HEEEMNMEREE
periods and geographical locations. B R R G flaniE &
RHIBAE o

Lease payments are allocated between principal HENREIERLEE K
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the TERAR o BA RS A AR A HR IR
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over HEA2EREFE RPN
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic BULSEHHENEEREDN
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability HAF %‘J‘Zé*@( °

for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the FTRHEEERBSINTNEE

following (if applicable): ZRRAGE (HEA)

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease . HEEBENY L=
liability; SE

*  prepayment; s TEIRIR

e anyinitial direct costs; and o [ERYIBEERAE K&

o restoration costs. o BB AN -

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the FTREEE—RREEANE

shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on RERREH (AREER

a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain E)ANEBRETE - A&

to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is BEEREETSTEBERE

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. E FPRAEEENHEEE

BRI R R ERITEE o

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases HEHAENMEEEEEMR

of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line ‘Ejﬁﬁ'ﬂ B SR A B AR VR TR R

basis as an expense in the consolidated statement of ZHKERPERRF

comprehensive income. Short-term leases are leases i EEAEEA B R12E

with a lease term of 12 months or less. A THHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 RRAREERSTHEREH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23 Htt st BERBME
231 BB E#R &K

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies
2.3.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.3.2 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

2.3.3 Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.3.4 Rental income

Rental income from investment properties are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.5 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2.3.6 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the
market by the Scheme (Note 19), the total consideration
of shares acquired from the market (including any
directly attributable incremental costs) is presented as
shares held for the Scheme and deducted from total
equity.

2.3.7 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.3.8 Intangible assets

(i)  Trademarks, investment in club debentures
and software licences
Separately acquired trademarks, investment in
club debenture and software licences are shown
at historical cost. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks,
investment in club debenture and software
licences over their estimated useful lives of 5 to
10 years.

(i)  Operating licence
Operating licence acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. It has a finite useful life and is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the operating
licence of 2 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and United
States dollars (“US$”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and USS$,
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other
than HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the Group.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that
the exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and
US$ does not have a material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by

the PRC government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. The Group has not considered it appropriate
to substantially hedge against currency risks through
forward exchange contracts upon consideration of the
currency risk involved and the cost of obtaining such

cover.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$4,224,000 (31
December 2023: approximately HK$4,367,000) higher
or lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
differences on translation of RMB denominated net
payables of the group entities with HK$ as their
functional currency.

At 31 December 2024, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$18,951,000 (31
December 2023: approximately HK$16,634,000)
lower or higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
differences on translation of US$ denominated net
receivables of the group entities with RMB as their
functional currency.

Interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable
banks and financial institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates
and lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing
positions, and alternative financing. Based on these
scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit of
a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the
same interest rate shift is used. The scenarios are run
only for assets and liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBREME (F)

g A

W

3

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

(=)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iff)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the simulations performed, if there is a 100
basis-point shift, the post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$422,000 (31 December
2023: approximately HK$171,000) higher or lower,
mainly as a result of change in interest rates on pledged
bank deposit and borrowings at variable interest rate.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commodity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposit, amount due from an associated
company, amounts due from joint ventures, as well as
credit exposures to trade and bills receivables and other
financial assets at amortised cost.

(1) Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers based
on their past repayment patterns, latest business
developments and other factors. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables falls within the recorded allowances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

2)

Risk management (Continued)

The table below shows the credit limit and
balance of the five major debtors at 31 December
2024 and 2023.

iy

P TEELTAC)

3 HXRARERE@m

Bt 7 JE B (Rl & (@)
(v) 15E/EER &)

(a)

(1)

As at 31 December

B EFE ()

TERHBINAKEEAD
AR—ZT_WMFER=
E_=F+-_fA=+—
B2 EERBERLEH -

Rt+t=HA=+—H
2024 2023
—E-MF —T=F

Counterparty Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised

HER EERE =Rcd:: EERE [SRESE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000

THExT TET FHETT FET

A 85,000 84,841 75,000 74,473

B 82,000 81,406 43,000 42,878

C 51,000 50,064 39,000 38,792

D 35,000 34,514 35,000 34,237

E 35,000 34,016 33,000 32,769

Impairment of financial assets 2) THEEHE

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from REBHEES R ZJE

an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures for sales of goods of the Group are
subject to the expected credit losses model. While
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit
and other financial assets at amortised cost are
also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures. The Group measures the expected credit
losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

SRR ERE R AR

WEZERNREE &
W — B QR KR
K EWE &R EFIR -
ARBEHEERHERN
E-RENAEEE
HA BEEMRITER
AR AR SH A AR T B 2
Hip @& EMAERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

2)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

3

B 7% L B B BB ()

B 7% & By R & (@0)
(v) 15E/EE &)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ) LHEEHE &)
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual 12 E Bl E E S £ 7B A
basis EEEE
The receivables relating to customers with known B 2 A0 3R B Bk R s
financial difficulties or with significant doubt on Wi [B) e U 2R T8 K Eh TR AE
collection of receivables are assessed individually EARBZEFHE
for provision for impairment. As at 31 December B FEW KT8 - ThgtRiE
2024, the balance of credit loss allowance in BAERERBIELE - R - =
respect of individually assessed receivables was ZMFE+=ZA=+—
approximately HK$76,438,000 (31 December H B2 = (E R 5 e
2023: approximately HK$73,094,000). WHRIBEEBE 2 ZEEE
4 45 #4 #76,438,000
BELT(ZE =%
+ZA=+—H:4
73,094,000 7T) °
The following table presents the gross carrying TREWRAR-ZZT M
amount and the credit loss allowance in respect FR_E_=F+=
of the individually assessed receivables as at 31 A= —|— H @ B =F 15
December 2024 and 2023: FEWZEBZEmEE
KA %Eﬁ?ﬁﬁéﬁ :
2024 2023
—EMF —T=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Gross carrying amount IREBE 76,438 73,094
Credit loss allowance EEEBERE (76,438) (73,094)
Credit net carrying amount EERMEFE = B
Measurement of expected credit loss on collective 1 pE R 2 7R BT
basis EEEE
Expected credit losses are also estimated by REE MR ER G
grouping the remaining receivables based on the g e T FEU G TE4E &
credit risk characteristics and assessed collectively PAHErERAZ B 1E
for credit losses allowance. When measuring the Wt = B R E R E(T
expected credit losses, the Group considered the it o HEFFHIZ
credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by BEEER  KERZEE
taking into consideration current conditions and BEHENEEERE

forward looking factors.

As at 31 December 2024, the balance of credit loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately HK$14,838,000 (31
December 2023: approximately HK$10,103,000)
based on expected credit loss rates up to 4.97%
(2023: 4.50%) applied on different groupings.

Annual Report 2024

W35 3B BE AT R
AR SR RETTHAE -

R-ZE_-_MWE+_-HA
—t—B EEART
B4R RS EHE
EEELEIIY% (=
T =4 :450%) st
H OZEERETHER
HIEZZEEBREL
#4#714,838,0007% 7T, (=
?7_¢+ A=+—
H : #910,103,000/&7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

(2) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective
basis (Continued)
Impairment and reversal of impairment losses on
receivables are presented as “net (impairment
losses)/reversal of impairment losses on
financial assets” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit
and other financial assets at amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposit and other
financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: same).

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash.

As at 31 December 2024, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$328,621,000 (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$375,093,000).

The following tables analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

3

REMBHRERME (F)

B 7% L B B BB ()

Bt 7 JE B (Rl & (@)
(v) 15E/EER &)

(a)

(v)

SRR ERE R AR

2) HEEHEE)
GERE RN BEE
EEEE (8)

E g 2k TE R B %R B
BEBBINGES R
AREXR25 A&/
BECRERSRE), RE
EiEBEFE] - EE
g 2 4 5k W (B0 B -
Y 7 Ui 2k TE B 4 BR
5% o BE1% UK [E] 5 BT E W
W FEG B AR -

HeRBEEEHA -
BERFRITFHRIE
ARz B
THEE
RZZTEZWMNF+=A
=t+—HB8 -BekHEE
ZEEE - BEFRTT
15 3N R 32488 S8 P 7R 5]
RZEMEMEEN
mEBEBEE(-CZ =
F+=-A=+—8:48
@) e

RE)E TR
EENRPDECRBREERER
RERBARASERRS
MAREEREREMESR
Z-AEEEEEERE
WREHRFESZTANE -

RZFEZWOE+=—A=+—
H AEEMNREEReE
{E T8 H #9328,621,000/% 7T
—E-=F+=ZA=+—
B : #9375,093,000/8 7T) °

TR B KRA 2 AR
AEEM TR EED BRE
MBI DEITEERE
HEEANZ AR
B TRARENEERE
HWARBBRBAERERAEH
AREKERNRNEF A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HHEREE@®
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BiEREZE@

(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) TEELE &)
Specifically, as at 31 December 2024, for borrowings BEEms R_E_HWFE
which contained repayment on demand clauses which +—A=+—R8 m®e=4A
could be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, the BRERKEEET (0] HIBIT
balances had been reclassified as current liabilities. 2REBBRATETE) WEE
The analysis shows the cash outflow based on earliest ME L8 EHFSsEAER
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that BEE o MEAERFT]
is if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights Bew B Sk Ay S - EARS (AP
to call the loans with immediate effect (2023: same). WEAENRES HERE

REFARE) BB 2R G
(ZZZ=%F: MER) -
Between  Between Total
On  Lessthan 1and 2and Over contractual Carry
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flow amount
122F 225F bR
REX{EE DN 28 pd SENE RELE &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TET TAT TATL TET TAT TATL
At31December204 ~ H=E-M%
t=A=t-H
Bank horrowings BEE
~ principal portion N 24,165 - - - - 24,165 24,165
Other borrowings AbEE
— principal portion K& #5 - 88 229 688 927 1,932 1,932
Lease liabiities HERE - 2,756 239 2 - 302 2,968
Trade payables SNEGES - 263714 - - - 203714 263714
Accruals and other irEAR
payables EHERTE - 147,802 - - - 147802 147,802
Loans from non-controlling 7R & 33 R £ %
interests LEH 16,997 - - - - 16,997 16,997
Dividends payable FERRE - 257 - - - 257 257
At31December203 ~ W=B==%
t=Az1-A
Bank borrowings RITEE
~ principal portion ~K& 55 47,081 - - - - 47,081 47,081
Other borrowings AbiEE
~ principal portion - K& %5 - - 98 771 1,295 2,164 2,164
Lease liabiities HEAR - 5,885 2,624 50 - 8,559 8316
Trade payables LT - 8248 - - - 282462 28462
Accruals and other EirBAR
payables AR - 12110 - - e VAN . A N ]
Loans from non-controlling R B 3FHEME S
interests & 17211 - - - = 1721 17211
Dividends payable ARG - 3 - - - 03 m

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

RERMBHERRME (F)

3 HXRARERE@m

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) B REREZE @
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) REEZERE E)
The table below analyses the borrowings of the Group THRERREERESHE
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining HEMNTEHES T ASE
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual SEZHEBAINBRAR DG
maturity date without taking into consideration the B g WET RIZERE
effect of repayment on demand clauses, while interest BIEZHNEE  MAENR
payments are computed using contractual rates. LAG M EETE -
Between Between
Within 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
122 2E5F
15/ A | ZH SEMUL - H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
As at 31 December 2024 R-2-mE
tZA=t-A
Borrowings: BE:
~ principal portion -KEHH 14,554 9,762 855 926 26,097
- interest portion —MEHH 1,080 343 52 26 1,501
15,634 10,105 907 952 27,598
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=%
r=EST=E
Borrowings: fBE:
~ principal portion -K&HH 2,773 14,656 10,521 1,295 49,245
— interest portion -fEEn 2,631 1,222 430 45 4,328
25,404 15,878 10,951 1,340 53,573

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

(b) EEERMR

AEENBESEREEREAE
BRSEREEREELE 26k

-

(Y &S EE R

REEMESFEANNGS I
HERENENEGEBUREER
DN

BEBRBEEALE AEE
MERHELNTREORS S

LIS

FARRBEEES  BITHK

SHEEENRKER

RERRZERARAR | — T _WFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RERMBHERRME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HHEREE@®
(b) Capital risk management (Continued) (b) E£EEERE @
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AEBNAEEABLRERAE
This ratio is calculated as net debt (borrowings less cash BN o W RIZFER (BEHRK
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. Management BeMEBESESEER)GRIAAER
considers a gearing ratio of not more than 30% as TE-EEERAACEMEESA
reasonable. B EETEN30% o
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2024 2023
—EME —ZT-=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Borrowings == 26,097 49,245
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERRESEBEIEE (328,621) (375,093)
Net Cash FHIRS (302,524) (325,848)
Total equity MR 1,263,337 1,193,216
Gearing ratio BEAAELE N/A R iE N/A ~3E F

(9]

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over the
requirement for working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group maintains cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$328,621,000 (31 December
2023: approximately HK$375,093,000) that are expected to
be readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial
liabilities.

Fair value estimation

The Group has classified its financial instruments by level of
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

<

EEEREIFBBG
Pﬁ%@éﬁﬁ%@ﬁ% EL%)\E\Q
BRHBE A EAREERES
ﬁm NEBEERRHE SR
MeR—_ZE-_WME+—_A=+—
B AEBzESMNRSSESE
H #9328,621,000/ L (— & — =4
+ = A=+—H : #375,093,000

BL)  BHRUARRHS AR
ZHEET -
() AFEME

AEECRBABBEAKES
MIANDBERFEAFEMAN
HERM R TREBEARE
DERAFERBEH=(EREMR

s MHEBEXBENEEMS
ZHRE CREHE) (F—R) -

s FAMBREZBRELIN
EEXABZABRER (W
A{BAR) K (BUR B E1%)
BABRE(F_R) -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o WIFERAIEREMISZEE (A
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) T B R AEE) WEE
(level 3). X BECEASE(E=4H) -

| Annual Report 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposit, trade and bills receivables, other financial
assets at amortised cost, amount due from an associated
company, amounts due from joint ventures, current portion
of borrowings, trade payables, dividends payable, accruals
and other payables, and loans from non-controlling interests,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The
non-current portion of other borrowings approximates their
fair values as the impact of discount is not significant. Lease
liabilities are initially measured on a present value basis by
discounting the lease payments to net present value using the
entities’ incremental borrowing rate.

See Note 8 for disclosures of investment properties that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2024.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Assessment of the expected credit losses of
trade and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables based on assumption about risk of default
and expected credit loss rate (Note 3(a)(iv)). The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculations based on the credit
losses incurred in the past, current conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet date.

(b) Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is written down to net
realisable value when there is an objective evidence that
the cost of inventories may not be recoverable. The cost of
inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly or partially
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost of
inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sales have
increased.

BEMBHERME (K)

3 HXRARERE@m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBHRERME (&)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(b) Provision for inventories (Continued)

The amount written down in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying value and
net realisable value of the inventories. In determining whether
the inventories can be recoverable, significant judgment is
required. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent by all means to
which the amount will be recovered.

(c) Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgment is required in determining the Group's
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference
will impact the current income tax and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised by the Group when
management considers it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading
of hospitality supplies products (“Hospitality Supplies Business”),
trading of operating supplies and equipment (“OS&E Business”),
and manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic
products (“Health Care and Hygienic Products Business”). From
a geographical perspective, the Board assesses the performance
based on the Group’s revenue by geographical location in which
the customer is located. There are three reporting segments: (i)
Hospitality Supplies Business; (ii) OS&E Business; and (i) Health
Care and Hygienic Products Business.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment profit/(loss) before income tax,
share of profit of an associated company, share of profit of joint
ventures and net fair value change on investment properties.

Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with
reference to respective segment revenue from external customers.
Assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the
principal markets in which the Group operates.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue of the Group
was recognised at a point in time and no sales derived from a single
customer which exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group (for
the year ended 31 December 2023: same).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, additions to non-current
assets comprise additions to right-of-use assets, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets (for the
year ended 31 December 2023: same).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Motor
Land Buldings  improvements vehicls
1 g7 HENzEE i}

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
Tin TR Tin TR

RERMBHERRME (F)

DEER @

ih B (&)
HE-_ZT-_MF+_A=+—HIHF
& REBM AR T (E B S 2h 5
RBERAE-—RPHNHEEEAEE
WABI0% A E (B Z=ZE _=F+=
A=+—BLEE : #HRA) -

HE_FT-_NMF+_A=1+—HIF
E ERDEEAESRREABEEHEE
E-ME BEERRH BFEERH
WIERBEE (BHE-_T-_=%F+_A8
=t+—BLtFE:H8R) -

M- BMERRE

Fumiture Computer Plantand ~ Construction
and fixtures equipment machinery In progress Total
FHREE ghik  ERREE BEIR it

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tin TR TAn TR Tin

At January 203 W-§ZzE-f-B
Cost S 17688 363486 169,851 20514 19110 18538 294776 797 911,760
Accumulated depreciaion 2ifE

and impairment R - (151498) (105,705) (25083 (17.199) (18,515) (187,836) - (505,796)
Net book amount FHFE 17,688 211,98 64,146 247 1911 3 106940 797 405,964
Yearended 31 December 2023~ BZ=F=z%

TZAST-BLEE

Opening net hook amount ENEDFE 17688 211,988 04,146 247 191 3 106,940 197 405,964
Aditions hE 544 3903 6,357 4m 946 ) 30,69 4491 56,734
Transfe toinvestment properties ~~ EAREH1E

(Note ) (Hit8) (104 (10653) - - - - - - (11357)
Transfer :114 - - 3940 - - - M (429 -
Disposals (Vote 33(t) HE W) - - (344) ) B1) - (997) - (137
Depreciation (Note 23) TEWa5) - (16,139) (10,559) (1,550) (597) 474) B23) - (52,541)
Exchange differences EiEE (18) (138 (874) (20) @) 5 (1,557) (1) (3,889)
(Closing net ook amount EXEETE 2408 187,718 62,666 517 2181 18 11201 1,068 393537
At 31 December 2023 it

tZRzt-A

Cost it 2,408 36,833 174986 29,176 19,284 18672 310315 1,068 min
Accumulated depreciaton 2ihE

and impairment it (159,115) (112320 (24,005) (17,097) (18.424) (198,244) - (529,205)
Net hook amount REFE 2408 187718 62,666 5171 2,181 8 1201 1,008 393537

RERRZERARAR | — T _WFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

b2 N =]

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6 ¥ - BERRHE @
Leasehold Motor Fumiture Computer Plantand  Construction
Land Buildings ~ improvements vehicles ~ and fixtures equipment machinery in progress Total
14 B:  BENERE g FhR%E BERE KERES kRIE it

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000

TER Tén TiEn Tén TiEn Tén Tin TEn Tén
Yearended 31 December 2024 HE-F-M%

tZRZt-ALEE
Opening net ook amount ENEREE 0,408 187,118 62,666 511 2181 %8 1201 1,068 393,537
Addtions hE 4760 131 10,025 2,555 a1 493 28,005 25,395 78,901
Transfer g% 8,045 4465 5472 61 - 530 (18,573) -
Disposal (Nt 33b) e (W7 = - - (1) 5 (1721) S (172)
Witen-off i - - - - - (19) (2217 - (2232)
Depreciaton (Note 25 i {lirza) - (14,107) (8,656) (2100) (685) (651) (33,014) - (59,215)
Bichange differences ERZE (191) (2176) (1,094) (55) (60) 10 (1800) (39) (5409)
Closing net hook amount EXREFE 35,02 183,131 68413 5,569 1939 85 101,854 7851 403,864
At31 December 2024 mt St 2
t-A=t-A

Cost K& 35,02 352,308 185,970 30,263 18,99 18,255 EAREY 7,851 969,800
Accumulated depreciaton and Zitlig
mpairment RAE (169,177) (117,557) (24,6%) (17,035) (18,170) (219.283) (565,936)
Net book amount BERE 35012 183,131 68413 5,569 1939 85 101,854 7851 403,864

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:

AEEHYE BELRBHTEDR
FAEzEmBRERNEG  FE0T

2024 2023

—EF —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Cost of sales $HE A 45,440 40,176
Distribution costs o HA AR 2,401 2,188
Administrative expenses THRAX 11,374 10,177
59,215 52,541

As at 31 December 2024, certain property, plant and equipment
with aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$ 14,184,000
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$15,590,000) were pledged
as securities for banking facilities of the Group (Note 21).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts
related to leases:

RERMBHERRME (F)

ERAEEERMEERR

(a)

REEEERERBERN

S =

HeEERBRB T TIEEE
BRANTHE

2024 2023
—EME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FAT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leased office premises HERANETYWE 76,596 81,286
Leased factory buildings HEMFETF 9,923 15,473
86,519 96,759

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current TmE) 2,679 5,680
Non-current JERED 289 2,636
2,968 8,316

During the year ended 31 December 2024, additions
to the right-of-use assets amounted to approximately
HK$551,000 (year ended 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$7,689,000), were recognised by the Group in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, certain right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$25,520,000
were pledged as securities for banking facilities of the Group
(31 December 2023: approximately HK$26,690,000) (Note
21).

B 1 B i 42

REE_ZT-_WNF+_A=+—
BIEFE BEERRAEELR
AU BRERANFEETREEE
#3551,0008 L (B2 =T ==
F+-_A=+—"HLEE:H
7,689,000/ 7T) °

RZZE-_WNF+=—A=+—8"
48 BR T {E #925,520,0005% 7T (—
Bo=Et+=ZA=F-—E3@
26,690,000/ 70) W& TERAEE
ECRBEALREERITREZ
BR(FEE21) ©

TRARA | —E-MEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

7 RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7

(Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows

the following amounts relating to leases:

FAREEREES S @

(b) REE2HKRFZRBEIN
=

FertmRaXRBLR TEEE
MRS

2024 2023
ZEIMF ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE

Leased office premises HERNEYWE 3,596 3,508
Leased factory buildings HEREESF 5,132 5,149
Leased warehouse HERE - 27
8,728 8,684

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAEBNERX
(Note 28) (Htzt28) 280 409
Other lease expenses (Note 25) H {8 &5 < (A7725) 5,754 6,066

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the total cash
outflows for leases of the Group amounted to approximately

HK$11,748,000 (year ended 31
approximately HK$12,066,000).

December 2023:

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for

The Group leases various land, offices premises, factory
buildings and warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 to 50 years, which do not contain any
extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024

HE_Z_MmM&E+_-_A=+—H
HFE - ALEERAENBR SR
4858 #11,748,0000 T (BB E —
E-=F+-_A=t+—HIFE:
#912,066,000/8 7T) °

KEFBZHEZTBHRFZE
BT E

AEEHEZE L PAE
¥ BMEEFRREE -HABKEH
— MR A1E504F /Y [E F #iR - WA
BIEEAEREERE -

HEGRFOEBEE LEEX
T8~ R B R R B AR £ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 REY=E
2024 2023
—E-E —EBEC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHE T
At 1 January ®—A—H 45,188 16,638
Transfer from property, plant ez BEREER
and equipment and right-of-use asset CREEEEARE
to investment properties (Note) W (i) - 28,698
Net fair value change on investment properties ~ HE&WE 2 A FELEE FH 262 -
Exchange differences &5 =% (1,207) (148)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 44,243 45,188
Note: Hiet -

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$11,357,000 and a right-of use asset of
approximately HK$1,757,000 have been reclassified to investment properties as
a result of change in usage. The fair values of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of use asset at the date of transfer amounted to approximately
HK$28,698,000 resulting in recognition of revaluation surplus of approximately
HK$11,730,000 and related tax effect of approximately HK$3,997,000 in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve.

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income:

HE-_ZE-_=F+-A=+—RHLEE &
11,357,000 T2 & TYE  BEERZERY
1,757,0008 T2 FEREEERRAREETCEM
PEEREME -WME  BRE RREREAE
AENEEA A TEL28,698,0008 T + &
HERHEMEE U E M EG B 411,730,000
7T M AR R RIS F 2 493,997,000 7T - I Rt
REHHE -

ATHREERGE 2 HRERER

2024 2023
“ECWE S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Rental income (Note 26) He WA (Kit26) 2,246 1,427
Direct operating expenses arising from REEEHESBAZ

investment properties that generates REMFE B
rental income (Note 25) eBHSY (Ba#25) 204 132

(@  Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties
were performed by an independent qualified valuer and the
management to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The following
table analyses the investment properties carried at fair value.

(@) AEBEREVEECHBIAER
HEMEEEBHETE LGE
NEEREMER-_ZT_NFR
el el I e =
FE - TRDBEZAFEIEZ
TEMERIEDHT o

RERRZERARAR | — T _WFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 8 REWMHEwumm
(@)  (Continued) (a) (#&)
Fair value hierarchy REEER

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2024 using
R-Z2-_mME+-A=+—AH
DNTPEFE(BRATEEEL)

Quoted price in Significant
active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
B HEEERE HMEEMN EENAHT
ERTMENRE THEEGASE HE@WAZE
(E—#) (F=#) (B=H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FET

Recurring fair value measurements: &1 AT(EE

Investment properties BEME - 17,967 26,276

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2023 using
R-B_=%+_H=+—H
NTERFE (BRATEIEEL)

Quoted price in Significant
active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
B HREEE HipEEH HEEZWAA
ARTISHNRE ABEEBARE BERARRE
(F—/) (B4 (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT FHET

Recurring fair value measurements: & HHAFETE

Investment properties REMF - 17,600 27,588

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year (year
ended 31 December 2023: same).

Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have
been generally derived using the direct comparison method.
For direct comparison method, sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square feet. The
higher the price per square feet, the higher the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

As at 31 December 2024, the investment properties were a
factory building located at Level 1 and 2, No. 36 Sui De Road
Lane 2, Putuo District, Shanghai City, the PRC and factory
buildings located at Block K (11th) & Block Q (12th), National
Road No. 41 (Ang Duong Road), Veal Vong Village, Sen Dei
Commune, Somroung Tong District, Kampong Speu Province,
Cambodia. The fair values as at 31 December 2024 were
assessed by independent and professionally qualified valuers,
Asset Appraisal Limited and CBRE Cambodia.

The valuations were determined using the income
capitalisation method. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is market rent.

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuations of the
factory buildings located in Shanghai and Cambodia as at 31
December 2024 are:

Valuation technique

{77 %

Unobservable inputs

FTUEEHABE

RERMBHERRME (F)

8 REWMHEum

(a)

(&)

R/ my R
Tew & |
5% e
iy
=
g 5
| =2
Q
:m
Er

J"%D_JEZJ?%‘%
@+&umm«Kmmmmmu)
(12th), 1 2ENational Road No. 41
(Ang Duong Road), Veal Vong Village,
Sen Dei Commune, Somroung Tong
District, Kampong Speu ProvinceZ

BMEEF R_TE-_NHF+=
=+ HZAFEIEBYEES

BER{EEMPEEELETEBRMES
FR /A 7] &2 CBRE CambodiazT{d °

BEDERABRABERNOEEE
HEEFERERZHBABER
mEHEE -

R_F_WE+-_A=+—HFf
BURNEERRBEZBERET
PIRAZEENABRGARER

As at 31 December 2024
R-EBE-_@mE+=ZA=+—H

Market rent

misHEE

Income capitalisation method

WAE KA

For factory building located in Shanghai

RMB55 per square metre/month
UREBZHERT
BABFARKRARYSST

For factory buildings located in Cambodia

USD1.6 per square metre/month

As at 31 December 2024, if the market rent of comparables
decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss would be
approximately HK$1,314,000 lower. The lower the market
rent of comparables, the lower the fair value.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023
for recurring fair value measurements:

NRARBECZEERZT
ERAEFTHKI6ET
RZE-_WF+_A=+—H"

HWABELBEME 2T HEST
5% E‘J%ﬂéﬁ?&ﬂﬁaﬂ% H%

1,314,000/ 7T © A]
mEHEeE AR ”TE Mﬁﬁo

2024 2023
—E_MEF e =
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Opening balance as at 1 January R—H— R8s 27,588 -
Transfer from property, plant and ?fﬁ#%% % 5= Mo A% A Ko fsh PR A
equipment and right-of-use asset BEBALEYE
to investment properties - 28,698
Net fair value change on investment  #&& % v A FEZE F58
properties (714) (1,437)
Exchange differences PE X =% (598) 327
Closing balance as at 31 December A+ A=+—H 28X 26,276 27,588
AEERERERA | —E_FFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8 KBEWHEw
(b)  Details of the investment properties: (b) BEMHEZFIS:
The investment property of the Group are leased to the AREB 2K EYERTAETEE
tenant under operating lease with fixed monthly rental WHemELeEERELPMEL
receivable and the Group closely monitors the risk associated AEBFRYERBAEEFMRSA
with its right retains in the underlying asset. A BRERE -
Address of investment properties Existing use Tenure
REY I B Al & EizR:
Room 101, Chuntian Garden, No. 6, Lane 31 December 2024: Rental The property is held under
999, Loushanguan Road, Changning (31 December 2023: same) long term lease
District, Shanghai City, the PRC
FE MR RELRIKI9E —E-NF+-A=+—H:HE& WEDREBERAEERAE
65% B RIEE101%E (ZZZ=F+-A=+—H:#HR)
Level 1 and 2, No. 36 Sui De Road Lane 2, 31 December 2024: Rental The property is held under
Putuo District, Shanghai City, the PRC (31 December 2023: same) long term lease
FE BT SRR R AR ERR ZENMFE+ZA=+—RHA:HE& YEIRBERHAEERAE
27365 — M & (ZZ2Z=F+=RA=+—H: 4R
Block K (11th) & Block Q (12th), National 31 December 2024: Rental The property is held under
Road No. 41 (Ang Duong Road), Veal (31 December 2023: same) long term lease

Vong Village, Sen Dei Commune,
Somroung Tong District, Kampong
Speu Province, Cambodia

Block K (11th) & Block Q (12th), “EoNF+—A=+—H HE DEIRERHEERS
R JH 28 National Road No. 41 (ZB-=F+=—A=+—H:#ER)

(Ang Duong Road), Veal Vong Village,
Sen Dei Commune, Somroung Tong
District, Kampong Speu Province

(¢ At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the future aggregate (0 RZE-_WMFR-ZTE-_=F+=
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating B=+—H XEBRETA =
lease of the investment properties not recognised in the HIEMEZLERE 2 IR K
consolidated financial statements, which are receivable by the HIEHEWAERE (KRGS
Group as follows: HRRER)MT :

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT FHET

Within one year —FR 2,246 2,271
Later than one year but no later BR—%F

than 5 years ETNERESF 3,067 3,817

5,313 6,088
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9

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

Impairment test of goodwill arising from the business
combinations in Cambodia

Independent valuation of the recoverable amount of the CGU
was performed by an independent professionally qualified
valuer.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rate not
exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the countries
in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions are as follows:

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 RHEREFEE
(a) Goodwill (a) BE
2024 2023
—E-mE —BZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January n—A—H 5,397 5,398
Exchange differences EHE%E (31) (1)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 5,366 5,397
Goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of CGUs, HELIREHBAENCRSEE
which represent the lowest level within the Group at which B MIASEEAGRABEIERM
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management TEREEZ&KEKT (CPARRE
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment. EOE) o
As at 31 December 2024, goodwill of approximately RZEZWNF+=ZA=+—8"
HK$5,366,000 (31 December 2023: approximately 7 & 495,366,000t (Z T == F
HK$5,397,000) is attributable to the cash-generating unit +=ZA=+—8 : #5,397,000/%
("CGU") for the Group's business in Cambodia. L)V RAAREB 2 RIBEEKZ

ReELSN ([REELENM]) -

RGREBE HITELBERA
R 1E R
AeELTEM 2 RESED M
égﬁii?%é\ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
fli{E

WeEEFEBEN A RE & E IR
EREBEAEREERE - WEtEH
EE AR AR & R TE) E'J%F\'mf%
[E 3t % E 7 F e B e B &t
;%‘t © ﬂﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’]iﬁémﬁﬁl?tﬂj
REEEBMK **Ffr%‘tl%ﬁﬁﬁ
FHERENRRIEREESR

TERRWOT :

Operation in Cambodia

RRFR2EE
2024 2023
—E_MF =
Pre-tax discount rate AT I =X 21.9% 22.1%
Compound annual growth rate WAESF
of revenue 1% K R 3.8% 12.5%
Terminal growth rate R i 1 R R 2.0% 2.0%

The recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2024. A decrease
in compound annual growth rate of revenue by 0.8% (2023:
0.4%) would remove the remaining headroom for the CGU
of the Group operation in Cambodia.

RAERERZERERA

R A H 8 0 AT
SEBHR -F_ME+ =7
=+-AZREME- BUAES
FHEFHL08% (—E=F
0.4% ) B KI5 2K 58 B RO R R
W2 RSB BITRMBEE -

| ZEZHFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

(b) Intangible assets

HERELEE@®
(b) BEEE

Investment in Software
Trademarks club debenture licences Total
HE BFEFRE BHgTR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT TEL FAEL
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=F-A-H
Cost A 1,768 98 11,976 14,712
Accumulated amortisation and S EHELAE
impairment (1,704) (968) (11,557) (14,229)
Net book amount BHFE 64 = 419 483
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE=-B==f
+tZBA=+-HILEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 64 - 419 483
Additions RE - - 470 470
Amortisation (Note 25) B8 (hi25) (25) - (605) (630)
Exchange difference ENER - - - _
Closing net book amount ERREFE 39 = 284 33
At 31 December 2023 R=B-ZF+=A=t-A
Cost A 1,771 968 12,446 15,185
Accumulated amortisation and R EERAE
impairment (1,732) (968) (12,162) (14,862)
Net book amount REFE 39 - 284 323
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-E-M&
+ZA=1t-HIEE
Opening net book amount FOEREFE 39 = 284 323
Additions RE - - 635 635
Amortisation (Note 25) BiE(hi25) (15) - (636) (651)
Exchange difference EHER = = 3) 3)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 2 - 280 304
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-mE+-A=+-H
Cost A 1,711 968 13,081 15,820
Accumulated amortisation and 2 EHELRE
impairment (1,747) (968) (12,801) (15,516)
Net book amount BHFE 24 = 280 304

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

| Annual Report 2024



9

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

(b) Intangible assets (Continued)

Amortisation of the Group’s intangible assets have been
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

RERMBHERRME (F)

BEREEEE@®

(b) BEEE @)

AEEENEENEHEERES
EHE KRR - FIBAOT

2024 2023
—ZE-NE ST
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHTT
Distribution costs KA 482 461
Administrative expenses TBAX 169 169
651 630
10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 10 EZLEFREBH

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the
same fiscal authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows:

EAAE AR BITRNAG AR E
EEMBBIAAEEE  METHAEN
W Rl — R EER - A EEMSER
BEHEBEIREN BRHESB|OT

2024 2023

—ENEF ZEZ=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&T FAET

Deferred income tax assets BEFTSTREE 2,366 3,059
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHAaE (7,563) (9,593)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEFTSHBEFEE (5,197) (6,534)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

BEEFAISHARE 2 HE8FRMT ¢

follows:

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FHET T

At 1 January n—A—H (6,534) (2,397)

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 30) M8z AR (M17#30) 1,212 (144)

Recognised in other comprehensive income 7 H b 2 [ U 25 W HE R - (3,997)

Exchange differences E & =R 125 4

At 31 December i i = == (5,197) (6,534)
AREEEERERAR | —T_WFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

10 EEFRBH @

PEBRRF — B BDEE R E L MRER
EREHENER  FRELHEREE
RABEzEEHMT

Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFFEHRERS
Revaluation Additions

Accelerated of dueto  Capitalisation

tax investment business  of right-of-use
depreciation properties combination assets Total

k& i FRESE
MEHERE NRER AfmAE BAL st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T Tk Titn T
At 1 January 2023 RZB-=%£-3-H = (2.861) (7%) (1,945) (5,602)

Recognised in other comprehensive REMSENEER
income - (3,997) - - (3,997)
Recognised in profit or loss RERRHERD (370) = 267 33 (70
Exchange differences EiZE (22) 9% s S 76
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=#+ZA=+-H (392) (6,760) (529) (1,912 (9,593)
Recognised in profit or loss REERER (206) 789 84 1,165 1832
Exchange differences EREE 41) 187 11 I 198
At 31 December 2024 RZB-RE+ZA=1-A (639) (5,784) (434) (706) (7,563)
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTBHREE
Deceleratedtax ~ Capitalisation of

depreciation lease liabilities Total
REHENE HEREERL @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T ThL
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=f-A-R 1,084 211 3,205
Recognised in profit or loss RERNED 4 (118) (74)
Exchange differences ERER (13) (59) (72)
At 31 December 2023 R=2-=#£+-A=1-H 1,115 1,944 3,059
Recognised in profit or loss PMER AR 579 (1,200) (621)
Exchange differences ERES (30) (42) (72)
At 31 December 2024 R=2-EE+=A=+-H 1,664 702 2,366

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$17,165,000
as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$16,181,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the remittance of earnings of PRC
subsidiaries. The related unremitted earnings totaled approximately
HK$343,308,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
approximately HK$323,627,000), and the Group does not intend to
remit these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiary to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2024
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11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

INVENTORIES 1 8
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Raw materials R % 81,105 118,588
Work in progress TEE&; 35,298 34,920
Finished goods RIRK f 216,263 217,941
332,666 371,449
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories B REFEBE (24,752) (42,363)
Inventories, net FEF5E 307,914 329,086
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year REEFAHEREANTFEER KL
amounted to approximately HK$1,182,765,000 (year ended 31 1,182,765,0008 T (A ZE =T =F+=
December 2023: approximately HK$1,077,213,000). B=+—HIEFE : £1,077,213,000) °
Direct written off of and net reversal of provision made for obsolete Bz - Z-_mW&E+-_A=+—HI1t
inventories for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to FE HEMMBLEALBREFENEE
approximately HK$8,849,000 (year ended 31 December 2023: P [0 )% %8 9 B 498,849,000/ 7T (H =
approximately HK$4,899,000) and approximately HK$7,265,000 —E-=HE+-_A=+—HIEEE:
(year ended 31 December 2023: net provision made for obsolete #94,899,0007 jT) K& £97,265,0007% JT
inventories approximately HK$7,293,000) respectively. These were (Hz2—_Z-_=F+-_A=+—8I1#%#
recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales” in the € : piBREF & M B & F 50 497,293,000
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. BIT) c WERRERAYL - Wit AGE2
R PEEERA] o
12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 12 EREZRRKRERE
2024 2023
—EMF —To=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade receivables EWE 5 R 802,601 675,435
Bills receivables EWEE 16,406 17,533
819,007 692,968
Less: provision for impairment of trade and A BINE SRR K
bills receivables ERRERE (91,276) (83,197)
Trade and bills receivables, net FEWE 5 R R R 15 F 58 727,731 609,771

The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 180
days.

RAEERERERARA |

AEBMETHEERN F15H=180
E] o

ZENFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (F)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 12 BEWESERAREE @
Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as JEWWE SRR N EEZEZBHNER
follows: SHITF :

2024 2023
—E-F —E =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
1-30 days 1£30H 321,831 331,264
31-60 days 31£260H 137,556 128,056
61-90 days 61%290H 108,220 55,938
91-180 days 91%£180H 160,070 91,732
Over 180 days 180H M + 91,330 85,978
819,007 692,968
2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT
Denominated in: BT EESIE :
- RMB - ARM 325,179 318,082
- US$ -%7T 427,901 304,891
- HK$ -AB7T 29,855 36,563
— Other currencies - HipEEE 36,072 33,432
819,007 692,968
The fair value of trade and bills receivables, are as follows: FEWESERREENAFEINT :
2024 2023
—E-F —E =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
Trade and bills receivables JEUE SR R EE 727,731 609,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$91,276,000 (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$83,197,000) are impaired and have been provided for. See
Note 3(a)(iv) for information about how impairment losses are
calculated. Net impairment losses on trade and bills receivables are
presented as “net (impairment losses)/reversal of impairment losses
on financial assets” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously impaired
and provided for are credited in profit or loss. Receivables for
which an impairment provision was recognised are written off
against the provision when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash. As at 31 December 2024, the individually
impaired trade and bills receivables mainly represent receivables of
approximately HK$76,438,000 (31 December 2023: approximately
HK$66,002,000) from PRC customers which have remained long

12

BEMBHERME (K)

A= S ES AT )

R-ZE-_NE+-_A=+—H EKEZ
SRR EZEEH1,276,0008 T (= F
—=F+=-A=+—H : 483,197,000
BT) BN BRRERELEE - BEE
HREBENER B2 T30
EWE ZEFRREE CREBEFER
BAETEARBZREZINABIEBREE OR
BEEER) REBBRERFME] - BRI
BRI ERELTIREFEN KBS R
Az - MTEHE AN B EINR S - B
B SRR B B A E R I R B R
Wi - -R_FE-_NF+=-_A=+—8"
BRI LB RENERE SRS &TF
FTEREEKTFEZFBHEANK
4376,438,0008 L (ZE = =F + = H

overdue and management considered the recoverability is remote. =+—H : 466,002,000/ ) EEEE
RABFT U EEE D
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills JEWE SRR N EBER R ERENE
receivables are as follows: N
2024 2023
“E-OEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January »w—HA—H 83,197 94,194
Net provision for/(reversal of provision) FRREKE SRR
impairment of trade and bills receivables REEREORERE(BE
recognised during the year B [Ol) F %8 11,833 (1,515)
Write-off of provision for impairment of trade il &4 /& I & 5 BR 2k & 21 /Y
and bills receivables AR E (1,131) (7,489)
Exchange differences fEHE5E (2,623) (1,993)
At 31 December R+—_HA=+—H 91,276 83,197

The creation and release of provision for impairment of trade and
bills receivables have been included in the net (impairment losses)/
reversal of impairment losses on financial assets in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovery.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above.

JEWE ZERA R EEREEBEORER
REFAGEEZEARZRAZERME
E CREER), TREE B D FE - 5t

ABEEREFNZTE —RABHETE K

(o] AR5 i £ o

REEANREEERR T EXATHE

HEKE ZERNRZENAFE -
RIEERIERR A R A — T _NFEFR

127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (F)

13 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED 13
COMPANY

FE U — Bt & X B FROR

ZRER/ER—HEERARNE SR
R KA REAERERAFERS -
ZHRBAETLEHE - R THEEHI A0
B ZRBRERBBRZREDOTAT -

The amount represents trade receivables from an associated
company. The carrying value of the amount approximates its
fair value. The amount is denominated in HK$. The credit period
granted is 90 days. The ageing analysis of amount by invoice date is

128

as follows:
2024 2023
—E_-F ZEZ=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
1-30 days 1%230H 3,304 3,822
Over 90 days 90H LA E 69 -
3,373 3,822

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

14 RBERAT IRz E it £ B

COST BE
2024 2023
—E-NEF ZEZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Current: mE
Deposits b acia 2,408 1,699
Other receivables H 4th e e skIE 8,410 7,621
10,818 9,320
Non-current; JERED -
Long-term deposits RERE - 3
10,818 9,323
The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair value. Ay EREEEATEREE -
2024 2023
—®_NF .
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Denominated in: BT E®TIE :
- RMB — AR¥% 7,746 7,409
- Us$ — %7 1,437 744
- HK$ — BT 996 817
— Other currencies —HmEK 639 353
10,818 9,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

15 OTHER ASSETS 15 Hih&EE
2024 2023
—E_EF e e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiET THTT
Current: mE
Prepayments TR IR 13,541 20,620
Others Hfh 36,006 45,806
49,547 66,426
Non-current: ERH :
Prepayments TEfT5RIE 5,235 8,475
54,782 74,901
16 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT 16 EEFRITEXR
2024 2023
—E-HE ZEZ=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiEx THETT
Pledged bank deposit 2R ITIER 11,636 11,958

As at 31 December 2024, a bank deposit of US$1,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,636,000) (as at 31 December 2023: US$1,533,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,958,000)) was pledged as collateral
for the grant of letter of banking facility in Hong Kong.

R-Z-UFE+=-F=+—H - 1,500,000
ZE 7T (FHE R 411,636,000 ) (W=
—=%+=-A=+—H:1,533,000%
(FRE 7 #911,958,000/8 7T)) = —H IR 1T
EREERMEAEBRITRE R Z RS -

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 BHE&NREZEEIEH
2024 2023
—E_NE ==

HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Cash at banks and on hand WITHEBR LA S 251,658 278,495

Short-term bank deposits (original maturities %8 Bi$R 7777 5% (R 2| HA A
of less than three months) LR=M@A) 76,963 96,598
328,621 375,093

Denominated in: BA T EESIE

- US$ — X7 117,898 175,400
- HK$ — AT 69,738 49,522
- RMB —ARK 101,064 103,721
— Euro — BT 17,550 28,836
— Other currencies —HMEE 22,371 17,614
328,621 375,093

The Group’s cash and bank balances with banks in the PRC
and India as at 31 December 2024 amounted to approximately
HK$99,381,000 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$102,936,000) and approximately HK$29,000 (as at 31
December 2023: approximately HK$117,000) respectively, where
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

R-E-_MNFE+_A=+—8 ' *~5H
FRHAERLEENRITZIRS RIETA
#29) BI1%999,381,000 T (KRB - =4
+=A=+—8 : #102,936,000/% T)
K #929,0008 Tt (R=—E=_=F+=A
=+—H8: £117,00087T) - ELERX
ST HNE B HIFRBR o

RERRZERARAR | — T _WFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

18 RESERVES 18
Other reserves
Statutory
Merger reserve
reserve fund

et TERAES
HK$'000  HK$'000

i
Hitb e

Other  Exchange  Retained
Reserves  Reserves  earnings Totgl
Hitfefe ELEE HKEEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TAT FAET TET
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-B==%
—B—-RW&H 61,510 33,742 5233 22851 445389 568,725
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year REFERN - - - - 104,181 104,181
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hth 2 (F8)/
income &
Currency translation differences EHFEE - - - (10,102) - (10,102)
Revaluation gain upon transfer from #6912 - BE K& &
property, plant and equipmentto  EAKE Y EE 2
investment properties s = = 11,730 = S 11,730
Total comprehensive income/ Ak (F])
(loss) ax = = 11,730 (10,102) 104,181 105,809
Final dividend relating to 2022 “E-CFE7RHKRE = = = (21,715) (21,715)
Interim dividend relafing t0 2023 ~ —E-=FEzH ke - - - (14477)  (14477)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-B-=#£+4+_§H
=t-HMEeH 61,510 33,742 16,963 12,749 513,378 638,342
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-B-ME
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, CAZREGR 61510 33742 16963 12749 513378 638342
Comprehensive income 2Eki
Profit for the year RER &M - - - - 3231 143231
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hit2E (F8) /K&
income
Currency translation differences BN EES - - - (12710) - (1270
Total comprehensive (loss)/ 20 (F8) /i
income g = - - (12,710) 143,231 130,521
Final dividend relating to 2023 ZE-CEEIRERE
(Note 32) (i/fﬁz) - - - - (36191  (36,191)
Interim dividend relating to 2024 ~ —E-MEEzRHRE
(Note 32) (fEE32) - = = = (1,717 (21,717)
Balance at 31 December 2024 RZB-MmE+=A
=t+-AHEsH 61,510 33,742 16,963 39 598,701 710,955
Nature and purpose 142 K&
Merger reserve &
Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the AEFENEHRAGRERIBATMNEE
cost of investments in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share RANRBEAMEERBARNR -+
capital and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from E/\m*@?&fﬁﬁf,ﬂﬁ‘%éﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ =
the application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial SIEMEEMNRD EENEEE -
information of the affected entities.
Statutory reserve fund EEFEE

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the
fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’
registered capital.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024

RIFEEEPBEERARG - P BIQE W
B ARAHEI0% D EEEZFEES
Ei&ﬁﬁ@LE“7}ﬁ§KWM%
BlE - ZEREBEELEEE RILERT
PRI 25T SRS A F AT &
K- MEZHEEEAEFRAGEMER
2 D25%H) K o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

Shares award

On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the Scheme, to
(i) recognise the contributions by employees, directors, consultants
or advisers of or to the Group (the "Eligible Persons”); and (ii)
offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted talents
and personnel for the continuance of operations and future
development of the Group. Subject to the rules as set under
the Scheme, the Board may at its absolute discretion to elect
any Eligible Persons to participate in the Scheme (the “Selected
Persons”) and to award the Company’s shares (the “Awarded
Shares”) to these Selected Persons, subject to vesting conditions,
if any. These Awarded Shares will be transferred to the Selected
Persons upon their fulfillment of all relevant vesting conditions.

In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the Group
has signed a trust deed with an independent third party to act as
the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain shares on behalf of the
Group and the Selected Persons before these Awarded Shares are
granted and/or vested. The Group may from time to time instruct
the Trustee to purchase the Company’s shares from the market on
the Stock Exchange and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the
Selected Persons.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no shares
were purchased on the Stock Exchange by the Trustee on behalf of
the Group.

No shares were granted to Eligible Persons under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

19

BEMBHERME (K)

IR D X &

A0 2R B
R-_T— /‘—\ihﬂ:-FEEl A VN [=)
R4 ”rilJ Mg EAKENEER &
= wABERE(EEBALDFAE
HjE’JEEK Re(iiyhe 5@ & 22 A TR 5] &%
BRBAT RABUERRERGRL
M&%&J: R o ZRMETEIFAERA -
ExgnzgRNRlEENEERAL
28518 ([EEAL)) RAMFEEA
ITREARB D (TR ]) - 1R
BT R BRI (A) - b FRER D
RITBHRERBRTERTREREE
BAL

REITEEIME AREERBEYF =
77 ERXFEAN(XFEALD RFTEFTR
B RUSEBROHERER H5B
Al RRAEBEREZALHAEE TR
o REBHR NI REFEAER A
MIEBEARRBRG - WIABEALH
BmAKBEAEEREBRRD

BE_T_NFER-_T_=F+_A
St HLESEE  XEABERLRAE
BREE X R E D -

REBEE_T_NFR-_FT_=F+t—-A
=t HLEEE  SERDREAEHE
BEBALRE -

20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 BRA
Number of
shares HK$'000
KmE R THT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.0IBTHEER
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and R=-Z=-=f—HF—H"
31 December 2024 —E-=f+-A=t-BK
—E_NE+=ZA=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and R=-ZT=-=f—-A—H "
31 December 2024 “E-=H+-A=t-BK
—E-_ME+=-A=t—A 734,262,697 7,343
AEERERERA —T_FFR



NOTESTOTHECONSOUDATEDFWANCMLSTATEMENTS(CONﬂNUEQ
REMBERME (E)

21 BORROWINGS 21 BE&
2024 2023
—E-@mEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current: M E
Secured other borrowings without WEREKEEERZ
repayable on demand clause BEFEMEE 1,844 2,164
Current: mED
Secured bank borrowings with BEEREREBERIGRZ
repayable on demand clause EEMRTEE 24,165 47,081
Secured other borrowings without WERERKERBERZ
repayable on demand clause EEAHMEE 88 =
. ... 24253 . 8081
26,097 49,245
The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: BERINTEEIME :
2024 2023
—B-NmEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
HK$ BT 3,996 7,287
uss$ e 20,169 39,794
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(BHED 1,932 2,164
26,097 49,245
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values EEE/\?EI%Z%%IT\Ek EEZERE
as the impact of discounting is not significant. BEEQNTERSE
As at 31 December 2024, the repayment terms of the borrowings RZZ_WE+A=+—H K& I
without taking into account the effect of repayment on demand Ei’MﬁEEIﬂqu&&xIEEMME’]
clause are as follows: 2T BEEFRHOT
2024 2023
—E-E —F_=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 year PMMER 14,553 22,774
Between 1 and 2 years 122F 7 9,763 14,655
Between 2 and 5 years 2&5F 7 [H 855 10,521
Over 5 years S5 926 1,295
26,097 49,245
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 BORROWINGS (continued)

The weighted average effective interest rate of the Group's
borrowings at 31 December 2024 is 6.9% per annum (31
December 2023: 7.3% per annum).

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

Except for other borrowings of approximately HK$1,932,000 as
at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$2,164,000), which was secured by personal guarantee of
a non-controlling interest of the Group, bank borrowings were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follows:

RERMBHERRME (F)

21 EE @

AEBR-_ZE-_NF+-_A=+—HH
BEENMEFEHERFRNEARE69% (ZF
—=HF+-A=+—H FHMRI3%)

BE T _NWFER-_FT-_=ZF+=-A
=+—HLEFE AEBEETEREE
BB 2 ISR

BR-_ZE-_NEF+_A=+—HAME
& E 491,932,000 L (R =-=F
+—A=+— El'iﬁz,164,oooi%7_c>t/(
AEBEFEFEREZR 2 BAAEREERR
Sh - RITIEBEHUAETHE  BE KK
HEREAEEEEERR -

EEZEEREEZREENT

2024 2023
—ENEF - ——

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) M - BB k& (Hat6) 14,184 15,590

Right-of-use assets (Note 7) Tﬁ?ﬁ wEE (Kat7) 25,520 26,690

Bank deposit (Note 16) IR (M E16) 11,636 11,958
Total carrying amounts of assets EHEREE

pledged as security ZRE4R%E 51,340 54,238

At the balance sheet date, the following is the undrawn banking
facilities of the Group:

REER AEB 2 HARRIHERT
mMEMT :

2024 2023
—E2-@mF —BC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Floating rate: S E)FIE
Expiring within one year R—FAEIH 393,662 397,976

RAERERZERERA

| ZEZHFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

22 TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

22 EHEZRX

ENESERNREZAMORE DN

wmr

2024 2023
—E_F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FAT
1-30 days 1%£30H 236,267 263,419
31-60 days 31£260H 17,542 8,065
61-90 days 61£90H 6,497 8,663
Over 90 days 90H A E 3,408 2,315
263,714 282,462
2024 2023
—E_F ZE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Denominated in: BT EESE :
- RMB — AR 219,424 238,243
- HK$ -5t 5,205 8,436
- US$ — %7 33,136 30,615
— Other currencies —HtEE 5,949 5,168
263,714 282,462

23 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

23 ESFERAREMENFIR

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$OOO

Current: FE -
Other payables (Note) E b e 2E (ML) 166,880 161,887
Accruals fEstE A 216,723 205,045
383,603 366,932

Non-current: JERE :
__ Otherpayables Atbgfxr 0 8m 9,023
391,775 375,955

The carrying values of accruals and other payables approximate

their fair values.

Note:

FERTE R R EAMEMN RN REERER

NFERE
Wt -

Included in other payables was advance from customers amounted
to approximately HK$23,933,000 (31 December 2023: approximately

HK$22,541,000).

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2024 that was included
in the advance from customers balance at the beginning of the year amounted
to approximately HK$14,862,000 (year ended 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$9,872,000). The Group expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the remaining
performance obligations of these contract liabilities within one year or less.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24 LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 24

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, these balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

RERMBHERRME (F)

REFERERZER

KEFIEB S 2 B R EIEA - &R
E&;E&E?Jifé% HEREMNKREE
BENVEEE

R-B_MNMER_FT_=F+_-_AH
_—1- El AT 5 EEIE 2 bt F 484
s

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl FHBT
HK$ BT 15,992 15,992
JPY H 1,005 1,219
16,997 17,211
25 EXPENSES BY NATURE 25 EMERI X

The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales,
distribution costs, administrative expenses and net impairment
losses/(reversal of impairment losses) on financial assets:

AEAHERA - DA TR R
SREERERER (REBREE)F
BAMR (W) Jd T

2024 2023
—E-E —TE=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Cost of inventories sold BHEFEXRA 1,182,765 1,077,213
Auditor’s remuneration = ELAT B

— Audit services —ZE R 3,060 2,880

— Non-audit services — IEEBARTE 389 777
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB REENITE

equipment 59,215 52,541
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREENTE 8,728 8,684
Amortisation of intangible assets B EENEE 651 630
Other lease expenses* HmHERE 5,754 6,066
Net (reversal of provision)/provision for REFEH (BERER),

obsolete inventories BiEFE (7,265) 7,295
Direct written off of obsolete inventories BEEMGERETE 8,849 4,899
Net impairment losses/(reversal of impairment & @& &= R EEE

losses) on financial assets CREEER D) 558 11,833 (1,515)
Employee benefit expenses B’ ERHFX 567,833 494,167
Transportation expenses BHERH 88,435 77,076
Exchange gains PE 5, Uk %5 (3,272) (2,382)
Advertising costs HERA 8,070 15,649
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plantand &% - KE K% E

equipment (=), B8 (185) 854
Direct operating expenses arising from REEEHESKA

investment properties that generates rental ZWEYEZ

income BEREERX 204 132
Utilities expenses NI 32,851 29,586

i These expenses relate to short-term leases. They are directly charged as * WERXEEBEEREM - LESHE

expenses and are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
under HKFRS 16.

EAARY X TEEEEUBHREE
AIE16SE TRt E AEERE -

BRIERBRIERERA | —E-MEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN

Fiy

(=)

MBmEAME (F)

26 OTHER INCOME, NET

26 HMW AFEEE

2024 2023
—E_F —F-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FAET

Rental income (Note 8) WA (KzE8) 2,246 1,427

Income from sales of scrap materials SHEBERHA 597 769

Government grants (Note (i) BRI FE 8L (KT 220)) 3,631 7,206

Others Hith 1,247 1,556

7,721 10,958

Note: Bt

(i) Government grants recognised were related to subsidies from the PRC (i) B FE SR 2 BU 8 B 81 P B AT 3t A &R [

Government in relation to certain capital investments of the Group,
and other subsidies from the PRC Government and the Hong Kong
Government (for the year ended 31 December 2023: same). There were
no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts
of these grants.

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

ETEARBRRZHBHARKRERE
BREBEBRN B HE AR (BE—
Zo=FF A=+ RULFE:ER) -
U ER It 55 4 Bl P 48 B O R AR IR 1 R B
ERAEM -

27 EERABEX

2024 2023

—E-MEF —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TEREL 514,359 442,449
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIKE A — FLEREGEHE 1,417 1,452
Welfare and other expenses B R E At A 2 52,057 50,266
567,833 494,167

Five highest paid individuals TEEEFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 include five directors
(year ended 31 December 2023: five directors) whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 37.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services, remuneration in
respect of accepting office as director, emoluments in respect of
director’s other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries and other benefits
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are
any payable (during the year ended 31 December 2023: Nil). No
consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services (during the year ended 31
December 2023: Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate
and connected entities (during the year ended 31 December 2023:
Nil).
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NOTESTOTHECONSOUDATEDFWANCMLSTATEMENTS(CONﬂNUEU
REMBERME (E)

28 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS 28 MW AR IR A
2024 2023
“E-EF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Interest expenses on borrowings BEEZANERAX (2,605) (5,841)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaBEZHERX (280) (409)
Finance costs B 7S R AR (2,885) (6,250)
_Financeincome AN 55 5916
Finance income/(cost), net BN (A JF5E 2,266 (334)
29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 29 FEHE AT
Ownership interest held by
Place of Principal Particulars  OWnership interest held by  non-controlling interest
incorporation activities of issued share the Group HERRE
and kind of and place of capital/registered sl ﬁﬁ*ﬁ&&ﬁ fiskRRRE
Name of company legal entity operation capital 2024 2023 2024 223
BEARE/
EMALBER Fidiii-pvd
AAER EERERY IEXBREEMEL #B ZBomE -BCZE CRCRE ZBIcZE
Ming Fai Holdings Limited Britsh Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding; Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100% = =
liability company
REERERAR ZBROEE EREMLA  REAR R 10057 100% 100% - -
Ming Fai Asia Pacific Company Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability Trading of hospitality supplies products, HK$10,000,000 100% 100% - -
company operating supplies and equipment and
health care and hygienic products;
Hong Kong
N B ARRELT HEREUEREER SEARR 1000000027 100% 100% - -
FEARFEEREERD BA
Ming Fai Enterprise International Hong Kong, limited fiability Trading of hospitality supplies products, HK$1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company operating supplies and equipment and
health care and hygienic products;
Hong Kong
FEEXAR Bk BRAMLA BERRCECRER SERRR  100000BT 0%  100% - -
ERAF REEREERRGE AR B
Ming Fai Industrial (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liabllity company ~ Manufacturing and trading of hospitality ~ HK$50,000,000 100% 100% = =
Company Limited (Taiwan, Hong Kong and supplies products, trading of
Macau's sole proprietorship of operating supplies and equipment and
legal person) manufacturing and trading of health
care and hygienic products; the PRC
REEE (R BRAT mE ARAMAR(RER  HERMEEEUEREER BE  50000000E% 100% 100% - -
ENEE) SERRRSBARRERHER
FEEREEAR B
H-Square Hospitality Total Solution ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Trading of operating supplies and HK$1,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company equipment; Hong Kong
HEFHEERERRAT EE BREMLT HESERmRRE: B4 1,000%7 100% 100% - -
Shenzhen H-Square Hospitality Total ~ The PRC, limited liability company  Trading of operating supplies and HK$50,000,000 100% 100% = =
Solution Company Limited (Taiwan, Hong Kong and equipment; the PRC
Macau's sole proprietorship of
legal person)
R ERERREERAR hE ARAMLAR(AER  HERERRRRE TE 50,000,000 70 100% 100% - -
EAEB)
ARARERERAR | —B-METH
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e BB ERR M (

&)

29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

29 FEME QT @

Ownership interest held by

Place of Principal Particulars  Ownership interest held  non-controlling interest
incorporation activities of issued share by the Group HERRR
and kind of and place of capital/registered FRBfRERRRE fiskRRRE
Name of company legal entity operation capital 2024 2023 2024 223
BRIKRE/
ARRLBER g
kL EERED TERBREEREY #ff -BCWE 9oz CRC@E CZBCCE
H-Square Hospitality Total Solution ~ Cambodia, limited liabilty Trading of operating supplies and Cambodian Riels 100% 100% - -
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd. company equipment; Cambodia 400,000,000
H-Square Hospitalty Total RER BREMAA HEEERRLREE  REE 400,000,000 100% 100% = 5
Solution (Cambodia) Co, Ltd. RERER
IKONE Design Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability Provision of professional solutions in HK$1,000 100% 100% - -
company product design, corporate branding,
gifts & premiums, and event
management services; Hong Kong
TERRYARHERAT B4 EREMAR RUEEXERFT PER 1,000 7T 100% 100% - =
RERERR BRR
RORERE BR
IKONE Design (Shenzhen) Limited The PRC, limited liability Provision of professional solutions in HK$2,000,000 100% 100% - -
company (Taiwan, Hong product design, corporate branding,
Kong and Macau's sole gifts & premiums, and event
proprietorship of legal person) management services; the PRC
TERT SR hE - BREAAR(ER  REZFERRT LER 2,000,000 100% 100% - -
(R BRAR ENEE) mEEENR £
EBRERE T8
Ming Fai Innovative Skin Care Lab Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of hospitality HK$100,000 100% 100% = =
Limited company supplies products and health care and
hygienic products; Hong Kong
RETERMRN BE BRAMAT RERBEREHERRELRER 100000 T2 100% 100% - -
BRAA EENEERR R
Ming Fai Enterprise (Camboia) Cambodia, limited fiability Manufacturing and trading of hospitality US§16,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company supplies products and trading of
operating supplies and equipment;
Cambodia
Ming Fai Enterprise (Cambodia) RER BREEAA HERHEBELEREERREE  16000000%T 100% 100% - =
Co, Ltd EEMmRRE: REE
Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd. Japan, limited liability company Product development and trading of body ~ JPY140,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49%
care products; Japan
A ERNBER AR AREMAT SEERERFERES AR 140,000,008 & 51% 51% 49% 49%
Quality Amenities Supply Pte. Limited  Singapore, limited liability Trading of hospitality supplies products, Singapore dollar 100% 100% - -
company operating supplies and equipment and $100,000
health care and hygienic products;
Singapore
Quality Amentes Supply Pre. Limited #1705 AR B AR BEREHEREED RERRR 100,000 100% 100% - -
KERRFTERREERR AT
il
Teng Xun Limited Cambodia, limited liabilty Manufacturing and trading of hospitality US§4,000,000 100% 100% - -
company supplies products and trading of
operating supplies and equipment;
Cambodia
Teng Xun Limited R BRRLLA BEREERERRRRERRHE 4,000,000 100% 100% - =
EERMRRE REE
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies Private ~ India, limited liability company Manufacturing and trading of hospitality Indian Rupee 51% 51% 49% 49%
Limited supplies products and trading of 338,300,530
operating supplies and equipment;
India
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies Private £ AR A AT A REERREEREER NS 38300530 51% 51% 49% 49%
Limited EERRRAE IR DEEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

30 INCOME TAX EXPENSES Fri8Bi B &
The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated E/\\\,if./:.\ EHQ?&%?D B (BEE) MRS
statement of comprehensive income represents: T4 %a )
2024 2023
—E-MF —ZE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current income tax: BNERFTISHL ¢
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEH 26,896 17,483
— PRC enterprise income tax — R ERER 11,805 29,350
— Other overseas profits tax — H A B INR1EH 1,314 2,709
Adjustments in respect of prior year MAFERAE (354) (1,243)
39,661 48,299
Deferred income tax credit (Note 710) EEFTS TR (13 10) (1,212) 144
38,449 48,443

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in
the jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax, Singapore
corporate income tax and Cambodia corporate income tax are

IR 54 AR SR R 2 P 1 RlAHE IR B0 S8
FE A R R RS -

BENGH  PEERMEH - FINRK
LEMS m&fﬁ%m%ﬁﬁ SRR

calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%), 25% (2023: 25%), 17% HE-_Z-_NNE+_-_A=+—HIFEF

(2023: 17%) and 20% (2023: 20%) on the estimated assessable B aﬂ?E;%t‘fﬁ}ﬁﬁ oA A16.5% (Z =

profits for the year ended 31 December 2024 respectively. Z=F:16.5%) * 25% (_T: T
25%) ~17% (ZE == 17%)&

Taxes on other overseas profits have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

The difference between the actual income tax charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts
which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit
before income tax can be reconciled as follows:

20% (ZZE == : 20%):t&

H 8N M 2 IR TR AN S B L 2 P
ERDERR 2 RITED 2B REIR
ZEMRZRITERH RS

B EEWER P EREH X HEE
/_:E/)_&%R—v— Tﬁ*u+ﬁﬁfﬁ‘%ﬂ:ﬁ'] /ﬁuj:lju+#ﬁﬁ
GBI EZREHEAT

=)
W

2024 2023
—T-mEF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Profit before income tax RETFTIS T AT R F 177,562 144,074
Share of profit from an associated company  fE{f§ — BB & A 7] &
and joint ventures A& ERET (1,380) (345)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates 1233 AR B R AR = /Y
applicable to profits in the respective s A BB =R
jurisdictions STERFIE 30,681 26,571
Income not subject to tax BARTAA (5,133) (2,969)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR RN A 8,180 7,089
Utilisation of prior year unrecognised tax FABAFEILR
losses Rz MIGEE (544) (412)
Adjustments in respect of prior year WEFE AR (354) (1,243)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax 7 KRR IE P50 & &=
asset was recognised ok IEEE'S Ei= 5,619 19,407
Tax charged RIELZ 38,449 48,443
BIEE R R AR A | —E_FFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

30 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (year ended 31 December
2023: 18% per annum). The change is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxation profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$331,707,000 as
at 31 December 2024 (as at 31 December 2023: approximately
HK$379,436,000) to offset against future taxable income. These
tax losses expire in the following years:

30

FriS®iB X )

BE-_ZT-_MFE+-_A=+—HBILFE
HMEFAERAREREF17% (BE
TEC=H+-A=+-BHLFE: =
F18%) - BiRBE TR /A KB E
AEERMEEAER BT RRE -

BEFSHEEDEERBEHREFED
FMARERT RN EE MG E
RBEEBEBER R_ZE_WF+—-A
=+—H FAEBZARERRIBAEELD
331,707,000 L (R=ZZE=Z=F+=A4
=+ —H : #379,436,000/ 7T) - A K
SHARRERTUA - L EBIBEBER
T3 ERE R -

2024 2023
—E-mF —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT
In the first to fifth years inclusive F—FEFNF (BEGEMF) 156,615 231,848
In the sixth to tenth years inclusive ERFERTF (BEGEME) 13,520 15,358
No expiry date & 2w A 161,572 132,230
331,707 379,436
31 EARNINGS PER SHARE 31 BREF
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit ERELRBFAKRNRREE AR
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted EREFBAFAREITE AR
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. MEFEHEETE -
2024 2023
—E-NF e
Profit attributable to owners of the FiN/N ETT?EE/\_J%TS
Company (HK$'000) s (FAETT) 143,231 104,181
Weighted average number of ordinary B EITERRINE T E
shares in issue (thousands) (TH) 723,839 723,839
Basic earnings per share SREXER
(expressed in HK cents) (BB S ) 19.8 14.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, diluted earnings per
share was the same as basic earnings per share as there were
no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: same).

32 DIVIDENDS

On 22 May 2024, a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Total dividend of approximately HK$36,713,000 was
paid out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

On 27 August 2024, the Board resolved to approve an interim
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share for the six months ended 30 June
2024. Total dividend of approximately HK$22,028,000 was paid
out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2024 of HK7.0 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of approximately HK$51,398,000 was resolved by the Board to
propose on 26 March 2025, which is subject to approval at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 22 May
2025. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in the consolidated financial statements, but reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31 December
2024.

31

32

SRR ERE R AR

REMBHRERME (F)

BRER @

(b) #8
15 108 7 2 LA B 35T 75 T 45
R R Al BB
78 BRI T B -

BHE-_Z-_NWF+=-A=+—H
IFE BEECRTETEEY
Bl REE_T-_NFE+ZA
=+ ALtFEZERESEAT
BERERZBFER (ZTE =%
R o

iz 8

RZEZMNFRA-+=H ' ARQAK
O ERBREE_E-_=F+=-A4
=+ —BIEFEZRARETRS.0H
fili > #936,713,000/8 T 2 % B4R E &
KE - BIERETEITHE 2R HhHEIRE
il SN

R-ZZE-WMENAZ-++RH EFe
BEAMEREE T -_NWEA=T+H
WEREAR R ER S FRR3.0EM - 49
22,028,000 T 2 IR S4B FE E BIR B -
PRERTETFEZROERE ZRE

R-ZE-AF=A=-+,B EFE
EARERBEEE_T-_NE+=-A
=+—HIEFERRAREFART 0L -
A% B 4858 #951,398,00078 7T © MEBFER
TE - RERA- T —HETHNARAR
BREBEFARE FEHER  FAEE -
I FER B M ARRERE B Rk R
BEMERE  BERBAEE T _NF
+-—A=+—BLFEMNSERRBEF -

ZENFEFR

141



142

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to

cash generated from operations

33 MEREHRERWFE

(@) Rt EHAIENEEE
EXHERENYER

2024 2023
—E-ME —T_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Profit before income tax RETATB R A E T 177,562 144,074
Adjustments for: EEH T3 R%E :
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME BEK
equipment (Note 6) RIBITE (H/it6) 59,215 52,541
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —ERAREENE
(Note 7(b)) (Htet7(b)) 8,728 8,684
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EEESH
(Note 9(b)) (H1aE9b)) 651 630
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEME  BEX
plant and equipment (Note 33(b)) R (Wzs)
B8 (B15£33(b)) (185) 854
— Write-off of property, plant and —WSEYE  BE &
equipment (Note 6) R’ (Hite) 2,232 =
— Receipts from government grants — W BT # A — 5,763
— Finance income (Note 28) — U A (B75228) (5,151) (5,916)
— Finance costs (Note 28) — ISR A (K7 5228) 2,885 6,250
— Net (reversal of provision)/provision for —BREFTER (BHERRE)
obsolete inventories (Note 11) R (HaE1) (7,265) 7,293
— Direct written off for obsolete —BEEMERERER
inventories (Note 11) (H1s£11) 8,849 4,899
— Net impairment losses/(reversal of —cREEREEE,
impairment losses) on financial ORE B 1 # )
assets (Note 12) SFEE (K E12) 11,833 (1,515)
— Share of profit of an associated —EE—HEBE AR
company il (1,371) (253)
— Share of profit of joint ventures —EEEEREZ
pigal (9) (92)
— Net fair value change on investment —REMFE 2 ATE
properties (Note 8) B REE (HaE8) (262) =
Changes in working capital: HBEeH
— Inventories —-FE 12,669 (85,492)
— Trade and bills receivables —JEINE SRR R ER (138,829) (57,599)
— Other assets —HMmEE 14,578 (20,621)
— Trade payables —JENE SRR (10,514) 119,813
— Accruals and other payables —EAEAK
H At & 5 5RIE 25,630 95,581
— Amount due from an associated — JE Y — RE Bt & R R
company A 449 (974)
— Amounts due from joint ventures — WA E D EIE (48) (241)
Cash generated from operations LS EEMISRIRE 161,647 273,679
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33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

/8|

HERERERME @

(b) HEMX -BERRERE

MrRBRTRERT  HEWE -

B K ST B BB IE
2024 2023
—E_ME =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Net book amount: BREDFE
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - WERRE
(Note 6) (#i7t6) 1,722 1,374
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEME  HMELREHY
and equipment (Note 25) W, (E18) (H1it25) 185 (854)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HEWE « BKE KB E
and equipment F1S 308 1,907 520
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing (0 REBREEIH>EE YR

activities

Liabilities from financing activities

RERETBZER
Loans from
Lease  non-controlling
Borrowings liabilities interests Total
FER
RE HEAR ERNEN @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THT FHT
As at 1 January 2023 RZZE-=%—-/—H 110,753 9,000 17,486 137,239
Cash flows RengE (67,328) (6,000) (172) (73,500)
Addition to lease liabilities HEABRE - 5,151 = 5,151
Finance cost (Note 28) B (Fr£28) 5,841 409 = 6,250
Foreign exchange adjustments  ShE 3% 1) (244) (103) (368)
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-=%+-A=1—H 49,245 8,316 17,211 74,772
Cash flows Beng (25,386) (5,994) (86) (31,466)
Finance cost (Note 28) BIEA (f72228) 2,605 280 - 2,885
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ 9pME 5% (367) 366 (128) (129)
As at 31 December 2024 R-E-_NE+=-A=+—H 26,097 2,968 16,997 46,062
RIEEERERAER AR | —F _NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, the capital commitments of the Group
were as follows:

34

BAREIE

RZE-_mNE+=-—A=+—1 &&£H
KB ZAEENT

2024 2023
—E-E —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted but not provided for in the ERTAME R
consolidated financial statements RE BTSRRI E 21,055 14,752
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BEBAERS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi Fai,
Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim Ching.

B — T RS Z—T7 » HNEHF K
EBERRETEERFEN  IRH
g 77 o LB KRIESIM AR TR S
RARE T

REE 2 REEH T R/REERE &
Hoakd B FMELERR®E L L -

(a) Significant related party transactions

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the

following related parties:

Name of related party
BB 278

Principal business activities

FEXBED

(a)

EDNL D

A E ST BT EA
%5 :

Relationship with the Group
BEAEE R

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company (“MF Plastic”)

PIEEBEXNA
(TeRsEZ R ])

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. ("QASM")

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. (TQASM )

iBridge Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
("iBridge Technology”)

BEHERECRI) BRAA

(TR EER])

Advance Medical Designs
(Hong Kong) Limited
("AMDHK")

Advance Medical Designs

(Hong Kong) Limited
(TAMDHK])

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic

products since April 2003)
HEPREM(B-_ZT=F
AR IR EE R Em)

Trading of hospitality supplies
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products

HEBEHEREER - € ERm

X Rl R IR R A

Provision of information technology
services

RHEMBERRE

Trading of disposable infection
control products

51 6 B ZE R I E am

Partnership owned by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai, Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi and
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

HIZEMESEE HBRREER
BEREEMERNGBEE

Associated company of the Group

ZAS

i

)k /NC]

Joint venture of the Group

IS S

JiE]

o

MEERE

Joint venture of the Group

AEENGEDRE

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

RERMBHERRME (F)

35 BEE RS @)
(a) EXBEEBARS @)

BRI0ER B B IS IR R E b 3P 0 T R

financial statements, the Group had the following significant 5= %Ql\  NEEEEE T ETH
transactions with related parties: BEARSHT :
2024 2023
—E_NEF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
(i) Sales of goods () HEEM
—to QASM —%QASM 16,145 12,290
— to iBridge Technology - FREEERR 18 17
—to AMDHK — T AMDHK 99 =
(i) Purchase of goods (i) BEE R
— from iBridge Technology —BRIEER X 355 372
(i) Rental charged (i) WEEE
— by MF Plastic — BB R 1,234 1,257

Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed
between the parties.

Purchases of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed
between the parties.

The Group leased certain properties from MF Plastic as one of
its production bases in the PRC. The transaction is carried out
at prices agreed between the parties.

HEEMNEAMNG 2HEM
HEMBIRETRS °

BEERDNEITHO A ZEEH
HEMERETRS °

AEERAEZBEAETYE
EREARPENER —ELEE
Mo R B IILETAT 2B E M

1 B8 HETT ©
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEAEME
2024 2023
—E-mF ===

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAT

Fees, basic salaries, housing allowances, we  EF - (EEERM -
other allowances and benefits-in-kind H b2 RL & IEE 8T 2 11,243 10,411
Contributions to pension scheme RIS EIHR 122 122
11,365 10,533
(c) Year end balances arising from sales and () HERBEERNERLESR

purchases of goods
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Amounts due from FEULA T & 5 5
— QASM (Note 13) —QASM (H#5#13) 3,373 3,822
— iBridge Technology - RIS R 327 289
— AMDHK — AMDHK 484 474
BRIERBRIERERA | ZE-NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 ARREEEERKHEES
OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December )3(\‘:'%:3; NE+_A=+—-A%2
2024 sk AAREEREE
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
bz FTHT FET
Assets EE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHERTNERE 235,673 235,673
Total non-current assets kRBEELTE 235,673 235,673
Current assets REEE
Other current assets HiRsEE 227 217
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL B B A Bl Fk IR 754,843 792,104
Amount due from a joint venture JEM —E6& &b ERIE - 13
Cash and cash equivalents BHe kRS EEEB 4,678 3,852
Total current assets B EEHE 759,748 796,186
Total assets EEHE 995,421 1,031,859
Equity Ex
Equity attributable to the KATEE A
owners of the Company LR
Share capital A% A% 7,343 7,343
Shares held under the Scheme FEITEE KK (8,196) (8,196)
Share premium I 17 @ B 613,261 613,261
Other reserves H A 372,030 408,140
Total equity R 984,438 1,020,548
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables JEst & B M H b e 8 1,237 1,452
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE ] 9,489 9,490
Current income tax payable FERIFEIR = 146
Dividends payable FEAT AR B, 257 223
Total current liabilities FREBAEHAE 10,983 11,311
Total liabilities EE8E 10,983 11,311
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 995,421 1,031,859
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of ARREERBRNR_FT_R%F=A
Directors on 26 March 2025 and was signed on its behalf. ZHAAKEESHAETHUATESER
REEo
CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
Director Director
EZE EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHERRME (F)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 AAREERABREREGED
OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for MzEA: BE=-S-_E+=H
the year ended 31 December 2024 =t+—HLEFEXATF
Merger
reserve Retained
(Note) earnings Total
EHFEE .
(Hi7t) REZF wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZB-Z=F-A—Az#&H 224,147 181,793 405,940
Comprehensive income 2HWE
Profit for the year AN S 5 A - 38,392 38,392
Total comprehensive income 2HEBRAE - 38,392 38,392
Final dividend relating to 2022 “E-_EEREKRE - (21,715) (21,715)
Interim dividend relatingto 2023 ~—Z-=FF 7 HHRKE = (14,477) (14,477)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=F+-RA=+—-Bz#&&% 224,147 183,993 408,140
Balance at 1 January 2024 RZB-MFE-A Azt 224,147 183,993 408,140
Comprehensive income 2HWE
Profit for the year REF R - 21,797 21,797
Total comprehensive income 2HERRAE - 21,797 21,797
Final dividend relating to 2023 :2:_¢r23fiﬂ;ﬁﬁ = - (36,192) (36,192)
Interim dividend relating to 2024 ~ —Z = FE 7 hER S - (21,715) (21,715)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-ZEB-ZME+ZA=+—Bz&& 224,147 147,883 372,030
Note: HiaF
Merger reserve of the Company represents the difference between the cost ARBNEHREEERHBRARMNIEERA R
of investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and share BRAHEEMBRARANR_-_ZEZ+FEHITE
premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of merger ERVBEESEASHEIEMEENRD
accounting in consolidating the financial information of the affected entities. B ERE -
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 37 EERFETHABEZHE

37

EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to Directors of

AEEEN BNAATNEEOHS R

the Company by the Group are as follows: FQT -

2024 2023
—E_F —E =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Fees e 1,350 1,350

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other R~ (EEZRE - KRR
allowances and benefits-in-kind & ok Tk 10,643 9,811
Contributions to pension scheme RIREET B 122 122
12,115 11,283

AR B B R P AR A PR A | —E-MEER

147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBERME (E)

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 37 EERFETHAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%%)
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE2E-_ZET_NMF+_—_A=+—HIF
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 are as follows: %Zz ARNBZEEREEZITHAE M
s/ LN
Employer's
Housing contribution to
allowance &  Share-based  a retirement
discretionary payment benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense scheme Total
EERER
EE2ER DRGRZA BAEN
EEp? He e REka fEx 5 aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Executive Directors (\ote (j) uTES ()
Mr. CHING Chi Fai BHBRE 120 1,386 1,139 - 18 2,663
Mr. CHING Chi Keung oL b 120 843 667 - 18 1,648
Mr. LIU Zigang g TEI%E 120 1,004 1,081 - 50 2,255
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BRELE 120 843 1,016 - 18 1,997
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung EEELE 120 1,500 1,164 - 18 2,802
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHAES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan kAL 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong (Note (i) SRS (W) 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson RRELE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Brfisk 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FyrEs
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BEETL 150 - - - - 150
Total fam 1,350 5,576 5,067 - 122 12,115
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the BE T _=F+-_A=+—HItF
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows: % ARBZEEREZITHRAE BB
I
Employer's
contribution to
Share-based ~ a retirement
Discretionary payment benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense scheme Total
BER&R
MR Z A B A
e ik ae BB M 2 a8
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$OO0  HKS000  HK$'000
ThL TAL ThL TAL TAL TAL
Executive Directors (Note (i) UTES (1))
Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEBLE 120 1,368 951 - 18 2457
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BERLE 120 831 611 - 18 1,580
Mr. LIU Zigang A FRIEE 120 994 914 - 50 2,078
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BRERE 120 831 860 - 18 1,829
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEEEE 120 1,481 970 - 18 2,589
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan Kyt 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong (Note (i) SRNEE (W) 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson RRRsLE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Brsrs 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FHrES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BREE R 150 - - - - 150
Total ag 1,350 5,505 4,306 - 122 11,283
Note: Bt
(i) The role of chief executive officer has been performed collectively by all (i) THAEZBEREEHNTES (BEK
the Executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Company. NAEEFE) XFETT -
(ii) Mr. NG Bo Kwong resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on 28 (ii) SREEEBRR-_ZE-_RAFE-_A=+N
February 2025. HEEBIFRNTES -
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